GOVERNING COUNCIL OF THE UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

REPORT ON THE TWENTY-EIGHTH SESSION

(9 June-1 July 1981)

UN LIBRARY

1 = 2 - 9 1987

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCILA COLLECTION

OFFICIAL RECORDS, 1981

SUPPLEMENT No. 11



UNITED NATIONS

₹				
	/			
			,	
			•	
				•
				-

GOVERNING COUNCIL OF THE UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

REPORT ON THE TWENTY-EIGHTH SESSION

(9 June-1 July 1981)

UN LIBRARY

1897 0 - 223

UN/SA COLLECTION

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL

OFFICIAL RECORDS, 1981

SUPPLEMENT No. 11



UNITED NATIONS

New York, 1981

VAACEU RU

NOTE

Symbols of United Nations documents are composed of capital letters combined with figures. Mention of such a symbol indicates a reference to a United Nations document.

E/1981/61/Rev.1

CONTENTS

		Page
PREFAC	E	vi
Chapte	<u>er</u>	
ı.	ORGANIZATION OF THE SESSION	1
II.	PROGRAMME IMPLEMENTATION	· 3
	A. Annual report of the Administrator	3
	B. Assistance to the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity	
	C. Assistance to the Palestinian people	3
	D. Action taken in response to decisions adopted by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session	4
	E. Evaluation programme	4
	F. Action taken in response to Governing Council decision 79/48	4
III.	PROGRAMME PLANNING AND PREPARATION FOR THE THIRD PROGRAMMING CYCLE, 1982-1986	6
	A. Country programming policies and procedures	6
	B. Matters arising from Governing Council decision 80/30	6
	C. Assistance to specific countries	7
	D. Pre-investment activities	7
IV.	COUNTRY AND INTERCOUNTRY PROGRAMMES AND PROJECTS	8
	A. Trends and problems in the country programmes	8
	B. Country programmes	8
	C. Intercountry programmes	9
	D. Global and interregional programmes and projects	10
v.	OTHER FUNDS AND PROGRAMMES	11
	A. United Nations Fund for Population Activities	11
71	B. United Nations Volunteers	12

CONTENTS (continued)

			149
	C.	United Nations Capital Development Fund	12
	D.	United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration	12
	E.	United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for Development	13
	F.	Interim arrangements for energy exploration and pre-investment surveys	13
	G.	United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries	13
	н.	Assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa and follow-up to the United Nations Conference on Desertification	14
	ı.	United Nations technical co-operation activities	14
	J.	Agency regular and extrabudgetary technical co-operation expenditures	15
vı.	TEC	HNICAL CO-OPERATION AMONG DEVELOPING COUNTRIES	16
	A.	Technical co-operation among developing countries and the policies, rules and procedures of UNDP	16
	В.	Report of the High-level Committee on its second session	16
VII.	FIN	ANCIAL, BUDGETARY AND ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS	17
	A.	Annual review of the financial situation, 1980	17
	в.	Budget estimates for 1982-1983 and supplementary estimates for 1981	17
	c.	UNDP financial regulations	18
	D.	Integrated Systems Improvement Project	18
٠.	E.	Sectoral support	,18
	F.	Support costs and flexibility arrangements	18
	G.	Audit reports	19
	н.	Interagency Procurement Services Unit	19
	ı.	Other matters	19

CONTENTS (continued)

	the state of the s	ay
III.	OTHER MATTERS	21
	A. Action taken by other organs of the United Nations system	21
	B. Relations between UNDP and external institutions	21
	C. Organization of the sessions of the Governing Council	21
IX.	DATE AND PROVISIONAL AGENDA FOR THE TWENTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL	23
	<u>Annexes</u>	
I.	Decisions adopted by the Governing Council at its twenty-eighth session	24
	Appendix: Check-list of decisions by agenda item	90
II.	Agenda and representation at the twenty-eighth session	93

PREFACE

The report on the twenty-eighth session of the Governing Council of the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) is presented to the Economic and Social Council in accordance with paragraph 4 of General Assembly resolution 2029 (XX) of 22 November 1965.

This report is submitted to the Economic and Social Council at its second regular session of 1981 for consideration under item 17 of its agenda, entitled "Operational activities". The decisions adopted by the Governing Council which relate to this item are listed below. An asterisk (*) indicates a decision requiring action by the Economic and Social Council.

- 81/1. United Nations Volunteers
- *81/2. United Nations Capital Development Fund
- 81/3. United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries
- 81/8. United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration
- 81/11. United Nations technical co-operation activities
- 81/14. Report of the Administrator for 1980
- 81/15. Revised country programming procedures
- 81/16. Preparation for the third programming cycle, 1982-1986
- 81/23. Country and intercountry programmes and projects
- *81/24. Report of the Working Group of Government Experts on its review of the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration
- 81/32. Report of the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries on its second session

In addition, some of the decisions of the Governing Council are relevant to the consideration of other items of the agenda of the Economic and Social Council, as follows:

Agenda item		Governing Council decision
4 and 22	81/6.	Assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa
4	81/13.	Assistance to the Palestinian people
4	81/17.	Assistance for the rehabilitation and reconstruction of Uganda
4	81/18.	Assistance to Lebanon
. 6	81/37.	Streamlining and rationalization of the work of the Governing Council

Governing Council decision Agenda item 6 81/45. Date and provisional agenda for the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council 11 and 22 81/4. Implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region 13 81/7. United Nations Fund for Population Activities 81/9. United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for 16 Development 18 81/34. Information on agency regular and extrabudgetary technical co-operation expenditures 22 81/5. Implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region

						-	
	·				·		
·							
						÷	
			· · ·				
				·			
							•
	· ·						
	:						
		•					

Chapter I

ORGANIZATION OF THE SESSION

Date and place

- 1. The Governing Council of the United Nations Development Programme held its twenty-eighth session at United Nations Headquarters, New York, from 9 June to 1 July 1981. The report on the session was approved at the Council's 736th meeting. The views expressed during the Council's adoption of its report are contained in the summary record of the meeting (DP/SR.736).
- 2. The Budgetary and Finance Committee of the Council held meetings between 8 June and 1 July 1981, also at United Nations Headquarters, to consider financial, budgetary and administrative matters. (For the report of the Committee, see DP/567 and Add.1.)

Attendance

3. Members of the Governing Council represented at the session, States represented by observers, organizations of the United Nations system and other intergovernmental bodies represented at the session, national liberation movements recognized in its area by the Organization of African Unity which were represented, and other participants at the session, are listed in section B of annex II to the present report.

Election of officers

- 4. In accordance with rule 11 of its rules of procedure (DP/1/Rev.2), the Council at its 708th meeting elected by acclamation Frank Owen Abdulah (Trinidad and Tobago) as President. The Council later elected the following officers, also by acclamation: Per Ole Jödahl (Sweden), First Vice-President; Hassan Gadel Hak (Egypt), Second Vice-President; and Ignatius Benedict Fonseka (Sri Lanka), Third Vice-President. The Council also elected Anton Baramov (Bulgaria) as Rapporteur.
- 5. Mr. Jödahl, First Vice-President, was designated Chairman of the Budgetary and Finance Committee; Mr. Kakima Ntambi (Uganda) was elected Rapporteur of that Committee.

Agenda

6. At its 708th meeting, the Council adopted the agenda of its twenty-eighth session as contained in document DP/L.341 (see sect. A of annex II to the present report). The annotations to the agenda are contained in document DP/507. The Council also approved the proposed organization of work for the session as contained in document DP/L.342 and as amended orally by the President, which had

the effect of rescheduling item 7 (f) for consideration on Monday, 22 June in conjunction with item 4 (d). A check-list of the documentation issued for the twenty-eighth session is contained in document DP/509.

Summary records of meetings

7. The summary records of the meetings held during the twenty-eighth session were issued as documents DP/SR.708-737.

Chapter II

PROGRAMME IMPLEMENTATION

A. Annual report of the Administrator

- 8. For its consideration of agenda item 4 (a), the Council had before it the annual report of the Administrator for 1980 (DP/510 and Add.1), together with basic programme data (DP/511 and Corr.1), supplementary programme data (DP/512 and Add.1), and information on subcontracts awarded and major equipment ordered (DP/525). In addition, under this item the Council's attention was drawn to documents DP/500/Add.1 and DP/501/Add.1, containing the comments of the Secretary-General on the Joint Inspection Unit reports on the Commonwealth Caribbean Project for the Education and Training of Allied Health Personnel (JIU/REP/79/17) and on the Asia-Pacific Institute for Broadcasting Development (JIU/REP/80/2), which were submitted to the Council at its twenty-seventh session as documents DP/500 and DP/501, respectively.
- 9. The Administrator introduced the report at the 708th meeting. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.708-717.
- 10. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision submitted by Bangladesh, Cuba and Trinidad and Tobago (DP/L.370). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/14.)

B. Assistance to the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity

- 11. For its consideration of agenda item 4 (b), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator on assistance to the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity (OAU) (DP/513).
- 12. At the 723rd meeting, the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Africa introduced the matters to be taken up under the item. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.713, 714, 723-725 and 727-729.
- 13. At its 729th meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision, submitted and orally amended by Uganda (DP/L.356). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/12.)

C. Assistance to the Palestinian people

14. For its consideration of agenda item 4 (c), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator on assistance to the Palestinian people (DP/514).

- 15. At the 725th meeting, the Administrator introduced his report. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.714, 725 and 727.
- 16. At its 727th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in paragraph 8 of the Administrator's report. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/13.)

D. Action taken in response to decisions adopted by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session

- 17. For its consideration of agenda item 4 (d), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/516).
- 18. At the 709th meeting, the Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Programme Policy and Evaluation, introduced the matters to be taken up under the item. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.708-716 and 725.
- 19. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in paragraph 19 of the Administrator's report, as orally revised. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/19.)

E. Evaluation programme

- 20. For its consideration of agenda item 4 (e), the Council had before it the progress report of the Administrator on the evaluation programme (DP/515) and an extract from a joint UNDP/International Trade Centre evaluation study (DP/515/Add.1).
- 21. At the 709th meeting, the Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Programme Policy and Evaluation, introduced the matters to be taken up under the item. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.709, 710, 713-716 and 725.
- 22. At its 734th meeting, the Council took note with appreciation of the progress report of the Administrator on the evaluation summary. (For the text of the decision see annex I, decision 81/29.)

F. Action taken in response to Governing Council decision 79/48

- 23. For its consideration of agenda item 4 (f), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator on government execution and management; project design, monitoring and evaluation; and UNDP-financed experts (DP/558 and Corr.1).
- 24. At the 709th meeting, the Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Programme Policy and Evaluation, introduced the matters to be taken up under the item. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.709, 710 and 712-716.

- 25. At its 717th meeting, the Council established a working group, under the chairmanship of the Third Vice-President, for the purpose of drafting proposals on this and other items of the agenda for the Council's consideration and approval.
- 26. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision submitted by the Chairman of the Working Group on improvement of the methods and procedures for the recruitment of project professional staff and consultants (DP/L.364 and Corr.1). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/20.)
- 27. At the same meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision on government execution and management; project design, monitoring and evaluation; and UNDP-financed experts proposed by the Chairman of the Working Group (DP/L.350). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/21.)

Chapter III

PROGRAMME PLANNING AND PREPARATION FOR THE THIRD PROGRAMMING CYCLE, 1982-1986

A. Country programming policies and procedures

- 28. For its consideration of agenda item 5 (a), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/518 and Corr.l and Add.l).
- 29. At the 709th meeting, the report of the Administrator was introduced by the Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Programme Policy and Evaluation. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.709-711 and 713-715.
- 30. This item was referred to the Working Group for the purpose of drafting a proposal for the Council's consideration and approval.
- 31. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision submitted by the Chairman of the Working Group (DP/L.365). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/15.)

B. Matters arising from Governing Council decision 80/30

- 32. For its consideration of agenda item 5 (b), the Council had before it reports of the Administrator on UNDP planning for the 1980s (DP/517), preparations for the third programming cycle, 1982-1986 (DP/519) and indicative planning figures for 1982-1986 (DP/565).
- 33. At the 709th meeting, the Deputy Administrator introduced the reports. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.708-716, 719 and 726.
- 34. This item was referred to the Working Group for the purpose of drafting a proposal for the Council's consideration and approval.
- 35. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision submitted by the Chairman of the Working Group (DP/L.361). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/16.)
- 36. At the same meeting, the Council approved a draft decision on the establishment of a UNDP study programme, submitted by the Chairman of the Working Group (DP/L.358). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/30.)

C. Assistance to specific countries

- 37. For its consideration of agenda item 5 (c), the Council had before it the reports of the Administrator concerning the response of UNDP to General Assembly resolutions on assistance to specific countries (DP/520) and on assistance for the rehabilitation and reconstruction of Uganda (DP/564).
- 38. At the 726th meeting, the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Africa introduced the reports. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.726, 728, 729 and 733.
- 39. At its 729th meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision on Uganda submitted by Cuba, Egypt, Liberia, the Gambia, Rwanda and Uganda (DP/L.359). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/17.)
- 40. At its 733rd meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision on assistance to Lebanon, submitted by Austria, Bangladesh, Belgium, Colombia, Cuba, Egypt, France, Greece, India, Kuwait, Liberia, Pakistan, Romania and Yemen (DP/L.368). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/18.)

D. Pre-investment activities

- 41. For its consideration of agenda item 5 (d), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator on pre-investment activities (DP/521).
- 42. At the 709th meeting, the Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Programme Policy and Evaluation, introduced the report. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.709, 710, 712-716, 727 and 734.
- 43. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in document DP/L.345/Rev.2. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/22.)

Chapter IV

COUNTRY AND INTERCOUNTRY PROGRAMMES AND PROJECTS

A. Trends and problems in the country programmes

- 44. For its consideration of agenda item 6 (a), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator on trends and problems in the country programmes proposed for approval in 1981 (DP/522).
- 45. At the 709th meeting, the Deputy Administrator introduced the report. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.710-716 and 729.
- 46. At its 729th meeting, the Council took note of the report of the Administrator. (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/23, sect. I.)

B. Country programmes

47. For its consideration of agenda item 6 (b), the Council had before it the following documentation for the proposed country programmes:

Country	Country programme document	Note by the Administrator
Bangladesh	DP/GC/BGD/R.3	DP/GC/BGD/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Bhutan	DP/GC/BHU/R.3	DP/GC/BHU/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Bulgaria	DP/GC/BUL/R.3	DP/GC/BUL/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Congo	DP/GC/PRC/R.2	DP/GC/PRC/R.2/RECOMMENDATION
Cuba	DP/GC/CUB/R.3	DP/GC/CUB/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Egypt	DP/GC/EGY/R.3 and Corr.1	DP/GC/EGY/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Kenya	DP/GC/KEN/R.4	DP/GC/KEN/R.4/RECOMMENDATION
Maldives	DP/GC/MDV/R.3	DP/GC/MDV/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Mauritius	DP/GC/MAR/R.3	DP/GC/MAR/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Nepal	DP/GC/NEP/R.3	DP/GC/NEP/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Philippines	DP/GC/PHI/R.3 and Corr.1	DP/GC/PHI/R.3/RECOMMENDATION and Corr.1
Poland	DP/GC/POL/R.3	DP/GC/POL/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Rwanda	DP/GC/RWA/R.3	DP/GC/RWA/R.3/RECOMMENDATION
Viet Nam	DP/GC/VIE/R.2	DP/GC/VIE/R.2/RECOMMENDATION

- 48. At the 709th meeting, the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Latin America introduced the country programme for Cuba. At the 729th meeting, the Chief of the Unit for Europe introduced the country programmes for Bulgaria and Poland. At the 730th meeting, the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Africa introduced the country programmes for the Congo, Kenya, Mauritius and Rwanda. At the same meeting, the officer-in-charge of the Regional Bureau for Arab States introduced the country programme for Egypt. At the 731st meeting, the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Asia and the Pacific introduced the country programmes for Bangladesh, Bhutan, Maldives, Nepal, the Philippines and Viet Nam.
- 49. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.709, 710, 713-716 and 729-732.

Programme and the

- 50. At its 730th meeting, the Council approved the country programmes for Bulgaria, the Congo, Cuba, Egypt, Kenya, Mauritius, Poland and Rwanda. (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/23, sect. II, paras. 1 and 4.)
- 51. At its 731st meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision on the country programme for Viet Nam (DP/L.366). (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/23, sect. II, paras. 2 and 3.)
- 52. At its 732nd meeting, the Council approved the country programmes for Bangladesh, Bhutan, Maldives, Nepal and the Philippines. (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/23, sect. II, paras. 1 and 4.)

C. Intercountry programmes

- 53. For its consideration of agenda item 6 (c), the Council had before it the proposed intercountry programme for Asia and the Pacific (DP/523).
- 54. At the 731st meeting, the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Asia and the Pacific introduced the intercountry programme for Asia and the Pacific.
- 55. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.731 and 732. In addition, the views expressed by delegations on the subject of intercountry programming are contained in documents DP/SR.710, 712, 715 and 716.
- 56. At its 732nd meeting, the Council took note of the intercountry programme for Asia and the Pacific. (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/23, sect. III.)

D. Global and interregional programmes and projects

57. For its consideration of agenda item 6 (d), the Council had before it the following documentation:

Project

Document

Special Programme for Research and Training in Tropical Diseases (Phase II) (GLO/80/005)

DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.1

International Centre for Insect Physiology and Ecology: Development of Long-range Means of Control of Crop and Livestock Pests and Diseases (GLO/81/004) DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.2 and Corr.1

Testing and Demonstration of Small-scale, Solar-powered Pumping System (GLO/78/004)

DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.3

Research and Development in Integrated Resource Recovery (GLO/80/004)

DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.4

International Crops Research Institute for the Semi-Arid Tropics (ICRISAT): West African Sorghum and Millet Improvement Programme (Phase III) (GLO/81/002) DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.5 and Corr.1

Research, Graining and Production Programme for Nutritional Quality Maize, Supported by Farm Level Surveys (GLO/78/009)

DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.6 and Corr.1

The Council also had before it, for its consideration, the report of the Administrator on the global and interregional programmes for the third programming cycle (DP/524 and Add.1).

- 58. At the 732nd meeting, the Senior Director of the Division for Global and Interregional Projects introduced the global and interregional programmes and the global projects listed in paragraph 57 above. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.732, 733 and 734.
- 59. At its 733rd meeting, the Council approved the six global projects listed in paragraph 57 above. (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/23, sect. IV.)
- 60. At its 734th meeting, the Council took note of the report of the Administrator (DP/524 and Add.1). (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/23, sect. V.)
- 61. At the same meeting, the Council agreed to regard paragraph 72 of document DP/524 as being in square brackets and that the Administrator would hold consultations with the organizations concerned and report to the Council at its twenty-ninth session on the outcome of those consultations.

Chapter V

OTHER FUNDS AND PROGRAMMES

A. United Nations Fund for Population Activities

- 62. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (a), the Council had before it the following documents:
- (a) Reports of the Executive Director of the United Nations Fund for Population Activities (UNFPA) on the activities of the Fund in 1980 (DP/527), allocations to projects in 1980 (DP/528 and Corr.1) and the future role of UNFPA in the 1980s (DP/530);
 - (b) Proposed projects and programmes (DP/FPA/12 and Add.1-17);
 - (c) Work plan for 1982-1985 and request for approval authority (DP/529);
- (d) Budget estimates for administrative and programme support services for the year 1982 and supplementary appropriations for the year 1981 (DP/531 and Corr.1-3) and report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Ouestions on the UNFPA budget estimates (DP/532 and Corr.1);
- (e) Note by the Executive Director transmitting the audit reports relating to UNFPA (DP/533);
- (f) Report and recommendations of the Executive Director concerning the Operational Reserve (DP/534).
- 63. At its 708th meeting, the Council decided to refer to the Budgetary and Finance Committee the financial implications of agenda item 7 (a), for the Committee's consideration and for the formulation of relevant recommendations to the Council.
- 64. At the 714th meeting, the Executive Director of the Fund introduced the matters to be considered by the Council under the item. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.716-719 and 727.
- 65. At its 719th meeting, the Council decided to refer certain matters regarding the UNFPA programme to the Working Group, under the chairmanship of the Second Vice-President. The recommendations of the Working Group, as subsequently adopted by the Council, are contained in decision 81/7, section I, paragraphs 2 to 9.
- 66. At its 727th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in document DP/L.354, as orally revised. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/7, sects. I and II.)

67. At the same meeting, on the recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in document DP/L.343/Add.3/Annex. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/7, sect. III.)

B. United Nations Volunteers

- 68. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (b), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator for 1980 on the United Nations Volunteers programme (DP/535).
- 69. At the 720th meeting, the Executive Co-ordinator of the United Nations Volunteers introduced the report of the Administrator. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.720, 721 and 722.
- 70. At its 722nd meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in paragraph 29 of the Administrator's reports, as orally amended. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/1.)

C. United Nations Capital Development Fund

- 71. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (c), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator for 1980 on the United Nations Capital Development Fund (DP/536 and Corr.1), and a report on the implementation of the partial funding system (DP/INF/34).
- 72. At the 717th meeting, the Executive Secretary of the Fund introduced the report of the Administrator and the document on the implementation of the partial funding system. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.717, 720, 722, 723 and 724.
- 73. At its 724th meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision sponsored by Bangladesh, the Gambia and the Netherlands (DP/L.350). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/2.)

D. United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration

- 74. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (d), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator for 1980 on the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration (DP/537), the report of the Working Group of Government Experts on the Revolving Fund (E/1981/23), a note by the Administrator (DP/538) on the report of the Working Group, and four recommendations by the Administrator (DP/NRE/PROJECTS/1-4) for projects in Benin, the Congo, Mali and Argentina, respectively.
- 75. At the 717th meeting, the Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Special Activities, and the Director of the Revolving Fund introduced the matters to be taken up under the item. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.712, 716, 717, 721-724 and 727.

- 76. At its 722nd meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in paragraph 26 of the Administrator's report, as orally revised. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/8, sect. I.)
- 77. At the same meeting, the Council approved the project recommendations contained in documents DP/NRE/PROJECTS/1-4. (For the text of the decision see annex I, decision 81/8 sects. II and III.)
- 78. At its 727th meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision (DP/L.352/Rev.1) on the report of the working Group of Government Experts. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/24.)

E. United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for Development

- 79. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (e), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator on the United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for Development (DP/539).
- 80. At the 720th meeting, the Administrator introduced his report. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.710, 712, 714, 716, 717, 720, 721, 723 and 727.
- 81. At its 727th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in document DP/L.351. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/9.)

F. Interim arrangements for energy exploration and pre-investment surveys

- 82. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (f), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator on action taken with respect to the Energy Account and the preparation by UNDP for the United Nations Conference on New and Renewable Sources of Energy, to be held at Nairobi, from 10 to 21 August 1981 (DP/540).
- 83. At the 726th meeting, the Deputy Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Programme Policy and Evaluation, introduced the report of the Administrator. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.726 and 727.
- 84. At its 727th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in paragraph 18 (a) of the Administrator's report, with the addition of two paragraphs which were read out by the President of the Council. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/10.)

G. United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries

85. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (g), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator on the United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries (DP/541).

- 86. At the 721st meeting, the Deputy Administrator introduced the report of the Administrator. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.721, 722 and 724.
- 87. At its 724th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in paragraph 14 of the Administrator's report. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/3.)
 - H. Assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa and follow-up to the United Nations Conference on Desertification
- 88. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (h), the Council had before it the following documents:
- (a) Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region (A/36/208);
 - (b) Note by the Secretariat on the report of the Secretary-General (DP/542);
- (c) Report of the Administrator on the implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region (DP/543);
- (d) Report of the Administrator on assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa (DP/544 and Corr.1).
- 89. At the 721st meeting, the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Africa introduced the report of the Administrator (DP/544 and Corr.1). At the same meeting, the Director of the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office (UNSO) introduced the Secretary-General's report (A/36/208), as well as the report of the Administrator (DP/543). The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.721, 722 and 724.
- 90. At its 724th meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision sponsored by the Gambia, Guinea and the Niger (DP/L.346). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/4.)
- 91. At the same meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision sponsored by the Gambia, Guinea and the Niger (DP/L.348), as orally amended. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/5.)
- 92. Also at the same meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision sponsored by the Gambia, Guinea and the Niger (DP/L.349). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/6.)

I. United Nations technical co-operation activities

93. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (i), the Council had before it the reports of the Secretary-General on United Nations technical co-operation activities (DP/RP/23) and on the relevant statistical information for 1980 (DP/RP/24).

94. At the 721st meeting, the Assistant Secretary-General, Department of Technical Co-operation for Development, introduced the reports of the Secretary-General. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.723 and 728.

Charles Services

95. At its 728th meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision submitted by Fiji (DP/L.353), as orally revised. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/11.)

Agency regular and extrabudgetary technical co-operation expenditures

- 96. For its consideration of agenda item 7 (j), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/545 and Corr.l).
- 97. At the 734th meeting, the Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Programme Policy and Evaluation, introduced the matters to be taken up under the item. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in document DP/SR.734.
- 98. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision contained in document DP/L.371. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/34.)

Chapter VI

TECHNICAL CO-OPERATION AMONG DEVELOPING COUNTRIES

A. Technical co-operation among developing countries and the policies, rules and procedures of UNDP

99. For its consideration of agenda item 8 (a), the Council had before it a note by the Secretariat (DP/546), referring to the Council the report of the Administrator on Technical Co-operation Among Developing Countries and UNDP policies, rules and procedures (TCDC/2/17).

The Council also had before it decision 2/9, adopted by the High-level Committee at its second session (see TCDC/2/19 $\underline{1}$).

- 100. At the 733rd meeting, the Administrator introduced the matters to be taken up under the item. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.708-715, 720 and 733.
- 101. At the same meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision submitted by Argentina, the Gambia and India (DP/L.363). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/31.)

B. Report of the High-level Committee on its second session

- 102. For its consideration of agenda item 8 (b), the Council had before it the report of the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation Among Developing Countries on its second session (TCDC/2/19.) 1/
- 103. At the 733rd meeting, the Administrator presented highlights of the second session of the High-level Committee. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.708-715, 720 and 733.
- 104. At the same meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision submitted by Argentina, the Gambia and India (DP/L.362), as orally amended. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/32.)
- 105. Also at the same meeting, the Council adopted a draft decision submitted by Egypt, India and Liberia (DP/L.367), as orally amended. (For the text see annex I, decision 81/33.)

^{1/} Subsequently issued as Official Records of the General Assembly, Thirty-sixth Session, Supplement No. 39 (A/36/39).

Chapter VII

FINANCIAL, BUDGETARY AND ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Annual review of the financial situation, 1980

- 106. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (a), the Council had before it the report of the Administrator containing the review of the financial situation in 1980 (DP/547 and Corr.1) and chapter II of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.7). 2/
- 107. Following consideration of the relevant recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/25. (For the text, see annex I.)

B. Budget estimates for 1982-1983 and supplementary estimates for 1981

- 108. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (b), the Council had before it the following documents:
- (a) Report of the Administrator on budget estimates for the biennium 1982-1983 (DP/548);
- (b) Report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions on budget estimates for the biennium 1982-1983 (DP/549 and Corr.1);
- (c) Report of the Administrator on supplementary estimates for the biennium 1980-1981 (DP/550 and Corr.1);
- (d) Report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions on supplementary estimates for the biennium 1980-1981 (DP/551).
- 109. The Council also had before it chapter VIII of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.13 and Add.13/Annex).
- 110. Following consideration of the relevant recommendations of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decisions 81/26 and 81/27. (For the texts, see annex I.)

^{2/} The Council had before it the draft report of the Committee. For the final report, see DP/567 and Add.l.

C. UNDP financial regulations

- 111. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (c), the Council had before it a note by the Administrator (DP/552 and Add.1 and Corr.1, Add.2 and Corr.1 and Add.3) on the UNDP financial regulations and rules, as well as the relevant report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions (DP/553). The Council also had before it chapter III of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.12 and Add.12/Annex).
- 112. Following consideration of the recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, and an oral amendment proposed by Sweden, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/28. (For the text, see annex I.) The views expressed during consideration of this question are contained in document DP/SR.735.

D. Integrated Systems Improvement Project

- 113. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (d), the Council had before it a progress report of the Administrator (DP/INF/30). The Council also considered paragraphs 8 to 14 of the report of the Administrator on supplementary estimates for 1980-1981 (DP/550). In addition, the Council had before it chapter IV of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.8 and Add.8/Annex).
- 114. Following consideration of the relevant recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/38. (For the text, see annex I.)

E. Sectoral support

- 115. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (e), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/555). The Council also had before it chapter IX of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.4 and Corr.1 and 2).
- 116. Following consideration of the relevant recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/39. (For the text, see annex I.)

F. Support costs and flexibility arrangements

- 117. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (f), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/556 and Add.1 and 2). The Council also had before it chapter V of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.10/Rev.1 and Add.10/Annex).
- 118. Following consideration of the relevant recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/40. (For the text, see annex I.)

G. Audit reports

- 119. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (g), the Council had before it a note by the Administrator transmitting the audit reports of the participating and executing agencies for 1979 (DP/557). The Council also had before it chapter VI of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.6.)
- 120. Following consideration of the relevant recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/41. (For the text, see annex I.)

H. Interagency Procurement Services Unit

- 121. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (h), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/559). The Council also had before it chapter VII of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.9 and Corr.l.)
- 122. Following consideration of the relevant recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/42. (For the text, see annex I.)

I. Other matters

- (i) Request of the International Telecommunication Union for additional support costs reimbursement
- 123. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (i), the Council had before it a note by the Administrator (DP/566 and Corr.l and Add.l). The Council also had before it chapter X, section A, of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.5).
- 124. Following consideration of the relevant recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/43. (For the text, see annex I.)

(ii) Fisheries vessels pool

- 125. For its consideration of agenda item 9 (i), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/563). The Council also had before it chapter X, section B, of the report of the Budgetary and Finance Committee (DP/L.343/Add.11).
- 126. Following consideration of the relevant recommendation of the Budgetary and Finance Committee, the Council, at its 735th meeting, adopted decision 81/44. (For the text, see annex I.)

(iii) Matters referred to the Budgetary and Finance Committee

United Nations Capital Development Fund (item 7 (c))

127. The views of the Budgetary and Finance Committee on the financial implications of item 7 (c) are contained in chapter I, section A, of its report (DP/L.343). The Committee's views are reflected in decision 81/2.

United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration (item 7 (d))

128. The views of the Budgetary and Finance Committee on the financial implications of item 7 (d) are contained in chapter I, section B, of its report (DP/L.343 and Corr.1). The Committee's views are reflected in decision 81/8.

Implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region (item 7 (h) (ii))

129. The views of the Budgetary and Finance Committee on the financial implications of item 7 (h) (ii) are contained in chapter I, section C, of its report (DP/L.343). The Committee's views are reflected in decision 81/4.

Action taken in response to decisions adopted by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session (item 4 (d))

130. The views of the Budgetary and Finance Committee on the financial implications of item 4 (d) are contained in chapter I, section D, of its report (DP/L.343/Add.1). The Committee's views are reflected in decision 81/19.

Technical co-operation among developing countries and the policies, rules and procedures of UNDP (item 8 (a))

131. The views of the Budgetary and Finance Committee on the financial implications of item 8 (a) are contained in chapter I, section E, of its report (DP/L.343/Add.1). The Committee's views are reflected in decision 81/31.

Action taken in response to Governing Council decision 79/48 (item 4 (f))

132. The views of the Budgetary and Finance Committee on the financial implications of item 4 (f) are contained in chapter I, section F, of its report (DP/L.343/Add.l and Corr.l). The Committee's views are reflected in decision 81/21.

Pre-investment activities (item 5 (d))

133. The views of the Budgetary and Finance Committee on the financial implications of item 5 (d) are contained in chapter I, section G, of its report (DP/L.343/Add.2). The views of the Committee are reflected in decision 81/22.

Chapter VIII

OTHER MATTERS

A. Action taken by other organs of the United Nations system

- 134. For its consideration of agenda item 10 (a), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/554 and Corr.1), prepared as a contribution to the United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries, and a note by the Administrator on action taken in 1980 by organs of the United Nations system (DP/560 and Add.1).
- 135. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.715, 716, 720 and 734.
- 136. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision on the United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries submitted by the Working Group (DP/L.372). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/35.)

B. Relations between UNDP and external institutions

- 137. For its consideration of agenda item 10 (b), the Council had before it a report of the Administrator (DP/561).
- 138. The report of the Administrator was introduced by the Director of the Division for Programme Support and Co-ordination of the Bureau for Special Activities. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in document DP/SR.734.
- 139. At its 734th meeting, the Council took note of the report of the Administrator and of the introductory statement. (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/36.)

C. Organization of the sessions of the Governing Council

- 140. For its consideration of agenda item 10 (c), the Council had before it a note by the Administrator (DP/562 and Corr.l) on the streamlining and rationalization of the work of the Governing Council.
- 141. At the 709th meeting, the Secretary of the Council introduced the report. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in documents DP/SR.709, 711-716, 726, 728 and 734.
- 142. At its 734th meeting, the Council adopted the draft decision recommended by the Chairman of the Working Group (DP/L.373). (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/37, sect. I.) On the recommendation of the President, the Council also adopted

- a decision relating to the agenda of its twenty-ninth session. (See annex I, decision 81/37, sect. II.) Also on the recommendation of the President, the Council adopted a decision relating to the documentation for its twenty-ninth session. (See annex I, decision 81/37, sect. III.)
- 143. At its 736th meeting, the Council was informed of the administrative and financial implications of decision 81/37 for the regular budget of the United Nations. The Council took note of the information, which is contained in document DP/SR.736.
- 144. At its 734th meeting, the Council also approved the proposed revisions to its rules of procedure (DP/1/Rev.2) as contained in document DP/L.357. (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/37, sect. IV.)

Chapter IX

DATE AND PROVISIONAL AGENDA FOR THE TWENTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL

- 145. For its consideration of agenda item 11, the Council had before it document DP/L.369/Rev.l containing the draft provisional agenda for the twenty-ninth session.
- 146. At the 736th meeting, the Secretary of the Council made a statement on the schedule of meetings for 1982. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this item are contained in document DP/SR.736.
- 147. At the same meeting, the Council approved the schedule of meetings for 1982 and adopted the provisional agenda for its twenty-ninth session. (For the text of the decision, see annex I, decision 81/45.)
- 148. At its 737th meeting, the Council had before it for consideration a draft decision submitted by the Netherlands (DP/L.374) relating to the agenda for the short special meeting to be held immediately prior to the twenty-ninth session.
- 149. Following consideration of this proposal, as well as consideration of a draft decision proposed orally by the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and the President of the Council, and taking into account the statement made by the Deputy Administrator, the Council adopted a draft decision read out by the Secretary of the Council. (For the text, see annex I, decision 81/46.)
- 150. The views expressed during the Council's consideration of this question are contained in document DP/SR.737.

Annex I

DECISIONS ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING COUNCIL AT ITS TWENTY-EIGHTH SESSION

Check list of decisions

		Page
81/1.	United Nations Volunteers	27
81/2.	United Nations Capital Development Fund	27
81/3.	United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries	28
81/4.	Implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region	29
81/5.	Implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region	. 30 ,
81/6.	Assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa	31
81/7.	United Nations Fund for Population Activities	3·2
81/8.	United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration	37
81/9.	United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for Development	38
81/10.	Interim arrangements for energy exploration and pre-investment surveys	39
81/11.	United Nations technical co-operation activities	40
81/12.	Assistance to the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity	40
81/13.	Assistance to the Palestinian people	41
81/14.	Report of the Adminstrator for 1980	41
81/15.	Revised country programming procedures	42
81/16.	Preparation for the third programming cycle, 1982-1986	44
81/17.	Assistance for the rehabilitation and reconstruction of Uganda	47
81/18.	Assistance to Lebanon	48

		Page
81/19.	Implementation of decisions adopted by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session	48
81/20.	Improvement of the methods and procedures for the recruitment of project professional staff and consultants	49
81/21.	Government execution and management; project design, monitoring and evaluation; and UNDP-financed experts	50
81/22.	Pre-investment activities	51
81/23.	Country and intercountry programmes and projects	53
81/24.	Report of the Working Group of Government Experts on its review of the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration	55
81/25.	Annual review of the financial situation, 1980	5 7
81/26.	Supplementary budget estimates for the biennium 1980-1981	58
81/27.	Budget estimates for the biennium 1982-1983	61
81/28.	UNDP financial regulations	64
81/29.	Evaluation programme	69
81/30.	Establishment of a UNDP study programme	69
81/31.	Technical co-operation among developing countries and the policies, rules and procedures of UNDP	73
81/32.	Report of the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries on its second session	7 5
81/33.	Enhancing the capabilities of maritime transport training institutions in developing countries	76
81/34.	Information on agency regular and extrabudgetary technical co-operation expenditures	76
81/35.	United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries	77
81/36.	Relations between UNDP and external institutions	78
81/37.	Streamlining and rationalization of the work of the Governing Council	78
81/38.	Integrated Systems Improvement Project	81
81/39.	Sectoral support	82
81/40.	Agency support costs	83

		Page
81/41.	Audit reports	85
81/42.	Interagency Procurement Services Unit	86
81/43.	Request of the International Telecommunication Union for additional support costs reimbursement	86
81/44.	Fisheries vessels pool	87
81/45.	Date and provisional agenda for the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council	87
81/46.	Matters for inclusion in agenda of the Budgetary and Finance Committee and the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council .	89

81/1. United Nations Volunteers

The Governing Council

- 1. Takes note of the successful completion of the United Nations Volunteer programme's first decade of service with the expectation that the programme's role and potential will be increasingly utilized in the coming years in accordance with the needs of developing countries, in particular the least developed and newly independent countries;
- 2. Notes the progress of the programme's activities in response to its related mandates in the fields of domestic development service and youth, particularly the preparatory activities for the International Youth Year;
- 3. Requests the Executive Co-ordinator to continue his efforts to recruit volunteers on the widest possible geographical basis;
- 4. Reiterates its invitation to Governments, organizations and individuals to consider starting or increasing their contribution to the Special Voluntary Fund, which assists the programme to undertake its various programme responsibilities more effectively;
- 5. Requests the Administrator to submit to the Council at its twenty-ninth session a short analytical report on the use of volunteers in the development process.

722nd meeting 18 June 1981

81/2. United Nations Capital Development Fund

The Governing Council,

Having considered the annual report of the Administrator on the United Nations Capital Development Fund (DP/536 and Corr.1) and the report on the implementation of the partial funding system (DP/INF/34),

Recalling General Assembly decision 35/422 of 5 December 1980,

Recalling also Council decisions 79/21 of 28 June 1979 $\underline{3}$ / and 80/19 of 26 June 1980, 4/

^{3/} See Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, 1979, Supplement No. 10 (E/1979/40), chap. XXI, sect. L.

^{4/} Ibid., 1980, Supplement No. 12 (E/1980/42/Rev.1), chap.XI.

Considering the magnitude of the needs for concessional capital assistance of the least developed countries, in order to accelerate their economic and social development,

Considering also the forthcoming United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries, which is to be convened in September 1981 at the request of the General Assembly,

- 1. Takes note with satisfaction of the Administrator's annual report on the United Nations Capital Development Fund and the report on the implementation of the partial funding system;
- 2. Welcomes the measures taken by the Administrator to implement the partial funding system, and commends the Administrator on the substantial progress achieved with regard to programme delivery and expansion of the Fund's activities;
- 3. <u>Decides</u> that the Fund should continue the partial funding system for one more year, and <u>requests</u> the Administrator to submit a detailed report on implementation of the system to the Council at its twenty-ninth session in June 1982;
- 4. Reiterates its previous requests to the Economic and Social Council to recommend to the General Assembly that the Fund should be authorized to meet the administrative and programme support costs pertaining to its activities from its own resources;
- 5. Reaffirms that, paragraph 4 above notwithstanding, the United Nations Development Programme will continue to provide to the Fund all field support services as well as all headquarters administrative support services;
- 6. Welcomes the participation of the United Nations Capital Development Fund in the subregional meetings which will precede the United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries, and expresses the hope that the Fund will be enabled to play a direct role in implementaion of the action prorgamme to be drawn up by the Conference:
- 7. Calls upon all countries to provide voluntary contributions to the Fund so as to enable it to maintain the momentum achieved in the past year and thereby play an increasingly effective role in channelling concessional capital assistance to the developing countries, particularly the least developed countries.

724th meeting 19 June 1981

81/3. United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries

The Governing Council,

1. Takes note of the report of the Administrator on the United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries (DP/541);

2. Appeals, in the light of General Assembly resolution 35/58 of 5 December 1980 on specific action related to the particular needs and problems of land-locked developing countries and of the International Development Strategy for the Third United Nations Development Decade as it pertains to land-locked developing countries, to all countries to review their position with respect to the Fund and to contribute urgently and generously to it;

1977 X 88 10

3. Requests the Administrator to report henceforth on the activities of the Fund on a biennial basis, the first of such reports to be presented to the Governing Council at its June 1983 session.

724th meeting 19 June 1981

81/4. Implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region

The Governing Council,

Conscious of the need for the speedy implementation in the Sudano-Sahelian region of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification as an integral part of the general efforts to promote the economic and social development of the region on an ecologically sound basis,

<u>Stressing</u> that desertification is both a major form of environmental degradation and an obstacle to development in fragile ecosystems characterized by low and erratic rainfalls,

- 1. Takes note with satisfaction of the report of the Administrator on the implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region (DP/543), and of the statement by the Director of the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office (see DP/SR. 721);
- 2. Commends the Administrator for the progress achieved by the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office, acting on behalf of the United Nations Environment Programme and within the joint UNEP/UNDP venture, in implementing the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region;
- 3. Endorses decision 9/22 B of 26 May 1981 of the Governing Council of the United Nations Environment Programme 5/ to add Benin to the list of countries eligible to receive assistance through the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office in implementing the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification;
- 4. Requests the Administrator to continue to support the administrative and programme costs of the joint UNEP/UNDP venture in full partnership with the United Nations Environment Programme, with a view to ensuring the timely and effective provision of assistance, through the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office, in combating desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region;

^{5/} See Official Records of the General Assembly, Thirty-sixth Session, Supplement No. 25 (A/36/25), annex I.

- 5. <u>Urges</u> all Governments, organizations, organs and other bodies of the United Nations system, as well as other intergovernmental organizations and private organizations, to intensify their assistance, either bilaterally or through the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office or any other intermediary, in response to the priority requirements of the countries of the Sudano-Sahelian region;
- 6. <u>Further requests</u> the Administrator to continue to report annually to the Governing Council on the implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region.

724th meeting 19 June 1981

81/5. Implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region

The Governing Council,

Considering that the nature and magnitude of the needs of the countries of the Sudano-Sahelian region, which are among the least developed countries, make it necessary for the international community to continue to strengthen its action of solidarity in support of the recovery and rehabilitation efforts, and of the economic development of those countries,

Expressing its deep concern about the severe living conditions of the Sudano-Sahelian people and the continuing critical food situation in the region,

Welcoming the initiative of the Administrator to include the United Nations Trust Fund for Sudano-Sahelian Activities in the United Nations Pledging Conference for Development Activities, with a view to expanding and intensifying the mobilization of the resources needed for the implementation of the recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sahel,

- 1. Notes with satisfaction the decisive role being played by the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office in helping to combat the effects of the drought through the mobilization of resources necessary for the implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme of the States members of the Permanent Inter-State Committee for Drought Control in the Sahel;
- 2. <u>Takes note with satisfaction</u> of the report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region (A/36/208);
- 3. <u>Commends</u> the Administrator for the results achieved by the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office, and for his continuing priority attention to the pressing needs of the drought-affected Sudano-Sahelian countries;
- 4. Expresses its gratitude to the Governments, agencies of the United Nations system, intergovernmental organizations, private organizations and individuals that have contributed to the implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region;

- 5. <u>Calls upon</u> all Governments to make special efforts to enable the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office to respond more fully to the priority requirements of the States members of the Permanent Inter-State Committee for Drought Control in the Sahel, including voluntary contributions to be made at the 1981 United Nations Pledging Conference for Development Activities;
- 6. <u>Invites</u> the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office to continue its close co-operation with the Permanent Inter-State Committee for Drought Control in the Sahel with a view to hastening the implementation of the recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region;
- 7. Requests the Administrator to continue to enhance the capacity of the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office to respond effectively in the field to the priority requirements of the States members of the Permanent Inter-State Committee for Drought Control in the Sahel through the greater use of resources available to the Programme, particularly the United Nations Fund for Population Activities, the United Nations Capital Development Fund and the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration;
- 8. Further requests the Administrator to continue to report to the Governing Council on the implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region.

724th meeting 19 June 1981

81/6. Assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa

The Governing Council,

Having considered the report of the Administrator (DP/544 and Corr.1) in the light of the recent information provided by the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Africa in his statement (see DP/SR.721), as well as other information provided during the debate by representatives of drought-stricken African countries,

Noting with anxiety that drought continues to wreak havoc in several parts of Africa,

- 1. Takes note with appreciation of the report of the Administrator and of the additional information provided during the debate;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to continue to report on the drought situation in Africa;
- 3. Appeals to the international community to give drought-stricken African countries generous emergency assistance that will enable them to cope with the situation created by the persistence and spread of drought.

724th meeting 19 June 1981

81/7. United Nations Fund for Population Activities

The Governing Council,

T

Taking into account the comments made during the consideration of agenda item 7 (a), and paragraphs 2 and 3 of General Assembly resolution 3019 (XXVII) of 18 December 1972, concerning the role of the Council,

- 1. Takes note of the reports of the Executive Director of the United Nations Fund for Population Activities on the activities of the Fund in 1980 (DP/527) and on allocations to projects in 1980 (DP/528 and Corr.1);
- 2. Requests the Executive Director to undertake a review and reassessment of the total UNFPA programme for the period 1982-1985, including the new programmes submitted to the Council at its twenty-eighth session, in view of the current resource situation and in the light of the revised work plan, assuming an annual constant increase of 10 per cent for the period 1982-1985, taking an expected \$131 million in contributions and other income in 1981 as the basis, and in line with the guidelines outlined below, and to report to the Council at its twenty-ninth session on the results of the review and reassessment;
- 3. Confirms that the Fund should concentrate on supporting the following areas in the order of priority indicated:
- (a) Family planning, oriented towards the individual and the family, both in the form of programmes integrated with maternal child health services in the primary health care context and in other programmes, as appropriate to social and cultural conditions, including:
 - (i) Delivery of services at the community level, including improvements in the logistical systems through which such services can be provided;
 - (ii) Training of personnel;
 - (iii) Strengthening of management;
 - (iv) Logistics support, including provision of contraceptives, if required;
 - (v) Encouragement, where appropriate, of local production of contraceptives;
 - (vi) Research into traditional and new contraceptive methods and development of improved means, including natural family planning methods;
- (b) Population education, communication, motivation and dissemination of information on family planning;
 - (c) Basic data collection;
 - (d) Population dynamics;
 - (e) Formulation, implementation and evaluation of population policy;

- 4. Reaffirms that the current list of priority countries will continue to be applied for the time being and that all efforts will be made to devote up to two thirds of country programme resources to them in accordance with the decision taken at its twenty-third session; 6/
- 5. Reaffirms its decision 79/28 of 28 June 1979 3/ that the Fund's support of intercountry activities should be within the level of approximately 25 per cent of total programme resources by 1982, requests the Executive Director to submit a report on intercountry activities to the Council at its twenty-ninth session which will (a) identify types of programmes and projects that are clearly technical assistance and backstopping for country activities, (b) indicate the effects of other intercountry programmes at the country level, (c) recommend activities which should be phased out and which should be given priority in maintaining the above-mentioned level, and (d) provide precise guidelines for all new projects, and further requests the Executive Director to exercise extreme caution in the interim in approving any new projects or programmes for regional, interregional or global activities, to ensure that the ceiling of approximately 25 per cent is respected;
- 6. Requests the Executive Director to submit a report which, while preserving the target established for the share of resources for priority countries and the level established by the Council for intercountry activities, would consider the possibilities of arriving at an over-all distribution of resources to the priority areas mentioned in paragraph 3 above, a substantial increase in the proportion of resources for family planning and population education, communication and information, and a substantial decrease as regards the share for basic data collection and population dynamics, and to make recommendations in this regard, bearing in mind the specific situation in a number of developing countries;
- 7. Further requests the Executive Director to report to the Council on the experience of the UNFPA with the system of priority countries and to explore the possibilities for introducing additional criteria to be applied in a future revision;
- 8. Takes note of the report of the Executive Director on the UNFPA in the 1980s (DP/530) and requests the Executive Director, in making project allocations, to take into account the following:
- (a) Magnitude of the population problems in relation to per capita gross national product;
 - (b) Population size and the annual increase in absolute numbers;
 - (c) Policies and programmes of the Government;
 - (d) Commitment by Governments to stated population policy;
 - (e) Absorptive capacity;
 - (f) Level of support of development assistance per capita from other sources;

^{6/} See Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Sixty-third Session, Supplement No. 3 (E/5940), para. 371.

- (g) Level of support for population activities from other sources;
- (h) Actual and projected implementation rates;
- 9. Requests the Executive Director to (a) undertake a comprehensive review of needs and opportunities in the field of contraceptive research and development which would address, inter alia, (i) the question of identifying those activities as a category separate from other intercountry activities, (ii) the question of what set percentage of the Fund's intercountry activities, if any, should be earmarked for research programmes designed to develop and improve various kinds of contraceptives, including natural family planning methods, and (iii) the question of continued Fund support including the annual level of such support for the World Health Organization Special Programme of Research, Development and Research Training in Human Reproduction and other research programmes within the proposal presented, as requested by the Governing Council at its twenty-sixth session; and (b) explore with the World Bank and other interested agencies World Health Organization, International Planned Parenthood Foundation, and private foundations how the World Bank proposal for the establishment of a joint board for health research could affect the contraceptive research field;

ТТ

1. Approves the following large-scale programmes and projects, subject to the review and reassessment regested in section I, paragraph 2, above:

In Benin (DP/FPA/12/Add.5) in the amount of \$1,460,390;

In Bhutan (DP/FPA/12/Add.8) in the amount of \$2,070,000;

In Ecuador (DP/FPA/12/Add.4) in the amount of \$2,850,000;

In Egypt (DP/FPA/12/Add.13) in the amount of \$15,000,000;

In Ethiopia (DP/FPA/12/Add.1) in the amount of \$16,000,000;

In the Gambia (DP/FPA/12/Add.3) in the amount of \$2,550,000 (including \$1,581,500 approved by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session (DP/FPA/11/Add.1));

In Guinea (DP/FPA/12/Add.2) in the amount of \$5,400,000;

In Haiti (DP/FPA/12/Add.7) in the amount of \$3,121,400;

In Morocco (DP/FPA/12/Add.14) in the amount of \$10,000,000;

In Nigeria (DP/FPA/12/Add.10) in the amount of \$17,300,000 (including \$1.8 million approved by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session (DP/FPA/11/Add.4));

In Pakistan (DP/FPA/12/Add.12) in the amount of \$30,000,000;

In Sri Lanka (DP/FPA/12/Add.9) in the amount of \$5,400,000;

In the Syrian Arab Republic (DP/FPA/12/Add.6) in the amount of \$9,000,000;

In Tunisia (DP/FPA/12/Add.15) in the amount of \$5,000,000;

In Yemen (DP/FPA/12/Add.11) in the amount of \$8,000,000;

For World Fertility Survey (continuation of Phase III) (DP/FPA/12/Add.16) for \$1,500,000 for one year;

For assistance to selected major intercountry programmes (DP/FPA/12/Add.17);

- 2. <u>Decides</u>, after reviewing the work plan for 1982-1985, to give the Executive Director additional approval authority for 1982, based on the assumption of an increase of 10 per cent per year, of \$33.75 million to make a total of \$144 million for 1982, additional approval authority of \$34.5 million for 1983 to make a total of \$108 million for 1983, and approval authority of \$72 million for 1984, on the understanding that the Executive Director will limit approval of projects to available resources and in line with the guidelines set forth in section I, paragraph 3, above, as well as the review and reassessment to be undertaken as requested in section I, paragraph 2, above;
- 3. Requests the Executive Director, in the event of a short-fall in the resources projected for 1982 and future years, to make programme adjustments, as necessary, in accordance with the priorities established above and in consultation with the recipients concerned;
- 4. Takes note of the views of the Executive Director in regard to the holding of a World Population Conference in 1984 proposed by the Population Commission, and requests the Executive Director to inform the Economic and Social Council at its second regular session of 1981 that, in the view of the Governing Council, given the scarcity of resources, the UNFPA should not contribute from its regular budget to the financing of the proposed conference;

III

Having considered the budget estimates for administrative and programme support services for the year 1982 and supplementary appropriations for the year 1981 of the UNFPA (DP/531 and Corr.1-3), together with the report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions (DP/532 and Corr.1), the report and recommendations of the Executive Director concerning the Operational Reserve (DP/534), and the audit reports of the participating and executing agencies relating to funds allocated to them by the UNFPA (DP/533),

- 1. Approves a supplementary appropriation under Programme II of the 1981 budget in the amount of \$1,249,500 as recommended in documnent DP/531 to be allocated from the resources of the Fund to finance the non-recurrent expenditures incurred for office space planning, design and construction in connexion with the transfer to the new UNFPA premises;
- 2. Approves appropriations in the amount of \$9,345,579 as recommended in document DP/531 to be allocated from the resources of the Fund to finance the 1982 administrative and programme support budget, including the reclassification of the Assistant Executive Director from the Director level (D-2) to the Assistant Secretary-General level, one post from the D-1 to the D-2 level and four posts from the P-4 to the P-5 level as follows:

Programme US dollars

Executive direction and management 1,211,365

Administrative and public information support services 2,593,736

Programme planning, appraisal and monitoring 5,540,478

Total net 9,345,579

- 3. Requests the Executive Director to submit to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session a report on the plans of the Fund to submit biennial budget estimates for administrative and programme support services with a view to achieving this in time for the biennium 1984-1985 of the budgetary cycle of the United Nations Development Programme and funds administered by the Programme;
- 4. Decides that the elements to be compensated for and covered by the Operational Reserve of the Fund shall be limited to:
 - (a) Downward fluctuations or short-falls in resources;
 - (b) Uneven cash flows;
 - (c) Increases in actual costs as compared to planning estimates or fluctuations in delivery;
 - (d) Other contingencies which result in a loss of resources for which the Fund has made commitments for programming;
- 5. Also decides that the level of the Operational Reserve for each year shall be established at 25 per cent of the estimated contributions for that year, rounded off to the nearest \$1 million, this target to be fully achieved as soon as possible and preferably not later than by the end of 1989; the Reserve shall be fully funded and gradually increased by amounts set aside out of annual income, taking into account the objective of retaining the level of delivery of projects in developing countries; the Executive Director shall present to the Governing Council an annualized replenishment schedule showing also drawndowns for that year in conjunction with the annual submission to the Council of his resource utilization projection included in the work plan of the Fund;
- 6. Decides that the Operational Reserve should be held in liquid assets which are irrevocably and promptly available for disbursements;
- 7. Takes note of the audit reports of the participating and executing agencies relating to funds allocated to them by the UNFPA as at 31 December 1979;

8. Agrees that the Executive Director shall be authorized to transfer credits between programmes of the reviewed 1981 and 1982 budgets, within reasonable limits, with the concurrence of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions.

727th meeting 23 June 1981

81/8. United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration

т

1. <u>Takes note</u> of the report of the Administrator on the activities of the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration in 1980 (DP/537);

The Governing Council

- 2. <u>Decides</u> to delegate to the Administrator authority to approve supplementary short-term funding, subject to the availability of funds, beyond approved allocations at any stage in project development, where further work would be vital to the continuation of field operations, and until such time as the next session of the Governing Council is convened, on the understanding that such action will be reported to the Governing Council at its regular annual session;
- 3. Appeals to Governments to contribute generously to the Fund so that it may respond to the requests of developing countries;
- 4. Recognizes that an annual funding target of at least \$10 million is desirable for the Fund's solid minerals exploration programme;
- 5. Requests the Fund to reopen negotiations with those countries whose projects were approved by the Governing Council in its decision 80/29 of 26 June 1980 4/ have since been cancelled, and to submit possible new projects to the Council at its twenty-ninth session;

ΙI

- 1. Notes the approval by the Administrator of the minimum work phase of the following three projects:
- (a) Exploration for kaolin in Benin (BEN/NR/78/001) (BEN/NRE/PROJECTS/1) in the amount of \$100,000;
- (b) Investigations on the offshore phosphate deposits (Pointe Noire sector) in the Congo (PRC/NR/79/001) (DP/NRE/PROJECTS/2) in the amount of \$165,000;
- (c) Mineral exploration in the Adrar des Iforas, Mali (MLI/NR/78/001) (DP/NRE/PROJECTS/3) in the amount of \$1,300,000;

- 2. Approves the following three projects:
- (a) Exploration for kaolin in Benin (BEN/NR/78/001) (DP/NRE/PROJECTS/1), involving a total possible expenditure of \$600,000;
- (b) Investigations on the offshore phosphate deposits (Pointe Noire sector) in the Congo (PRC/NR/79/001) (DP/NRE/PROJECTS/2), involving a total possible expenditure of \$865,000;
- (c) Mineral exploration in the Adrar des Iforas, Mali (MLI/NR/78/001) (DP/NRE/PROJECTS/3), involving a total possible expenditure of \$2.8 million;
- 3. Decides that these approvals shall be cancelled unless the respective of Governments and the Fund have signed project agreements within a period of nine months after the date of approval of the minimum work, it being understood that the Governing Council shall be notified of any such cancellation at the Council's first session after such action has been taken;

III '

Approves the supplementary project recommendation for mineral exploration in the province of Chubut, Argentina (ARG/NR/77/001) (DP/NRE/PROJECTS/4), involving additional funding up to a maximum of \$650,000.

722nd meeting 18 June 1981

81/9. United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for Development

The Governing Council,

Recalling General Assembly resolution 34/218 of 19 December 1979, in which the Assembly decided, inter alia, to establish a United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for Development for a two-year period ending on 31 December 1981, and a United Nations Financing System for Science and Technology for Development to come into being from 1 January 1982,

Being concerned to ensure an orderly transfer of the functions and responsibilities of the Interim Fund to the Financing System,

- 1. <u>Decides</u> to authorize the Administrator, in response to decisions and requests from competent intergovernmental bodies, to make arrangements to ensure an orderly transition from the Interim Fund to the Financing System covering, inter alia:
- (a) Transfer of the assets, resources and commitments against such resources and assets of the Interim Fund to the Financing System;
- (b) Acceptance of any additional pledges and payments of past pledges, including cost sharing funds and trust funds, intended by contributors for the benefit of the Interim Fund or the Financing System;

- (c) If needed, continued administration and monitoring of approved projects and the approval of new projects subject to any decisions or modalities regarding approval of projects which may be agreed upon by competent intergovernmental bodies as applicable during the transition period;
- (d) Extension of the contracts of existing staff of the Interim Fund as necessary beyond 31 December 1981 to undertake the functions set out in subparagraphs (a), (b) and (c) above;
- 2. Further decides that the carrying out of the responsibilities set out in paragraphs 1 and 3 above is conditional on the agreement of the competent intergovernmental bodies that the costs involved shall be chargeable to the resources of the Interim Fund or the Financing System or to sources other than UNDP funds or resources;
- 3. Authorizes the Administrator to assist the Financing System, if so requested, in the preparation of the articles of agreement, the prospectus and such other documents as may be needed to enable the Financing System to undertake its responsibilities.

727th meeting 23 June 1981

81/10. Interim arrangements for energy exploration and pre-investment surveys

The Governing Council,

- 1. Takes note with appreciation of the report of the Administrator (DP/540) on action taken in respect of the Energy Account and the preparations by the United Nations Development Programme for the United Nations Conference on New and Renewable Sources of Energy;
- 2. Expresses its satisfation with the progress made in assisting Governments in the identification, planning and implementation of high priority energy projects;
- 3. <u>Authorizes</u>, in principle, the Administrator to accept the administration and management of any new funding mechanism for activities related to energy, if so requested by the United Nations Conference on New and Renewable Sources of Energy and endorsed by the General Assembly.

727th meeting 23 June 1981

81/11. United Nations technical co-operation activities

The Governing Council,

- 1. Takes note of the reports of the Secretary-General on United Nations technical co-operation activities (DP/RP/23, DP/RP/24);
- 2. Endorses the current orientation of the work of the Department of Technical Co-operation for Development of the Secretariat and use of the United Nations regular programme of technical co-operation for innovative activities for promoting global priorities recognized by the United Nations bodies, technical co-operation among developing countries and new dimensions, special consideration being given to the needs of the least developed countries and the island and land-locked developing countries;
- 3. <u>Invites</u> the Administrator to take fully into account the special competence, experience and expertise of the Department of Technical Co-operation for Development in its fields of specialization when selecting executing agencies for implementation of UNDP-financed projects, or projects financed by other funds already managed by UNDP or by such new funds as may be entrusted to UNDP in the future as the result of such international conferences as the United Nations Conference on New and Renewable Sources of Energy;
- 4. Endorses the recommendation of the Working Group of Government Experts, as contained in paragraphs 50 and 51 of its report (E/1981/23), that the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration should maintain close co-ordination with the Department of Technical Co-operation for Development, and that maximum use should be made of technical services existing within the Department for the operational activities financed by the Revolving Fund.

728th meeting 24 June 1981

81/12. Assistance to the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity

The Governing Council,

<u>Having considered</u> the report of the Administrator (DP/513) in the light of the additional information provided by the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Africa in his statement (see DP/SR.723), as well as the statements made during the debate by representatives of the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity,

- 1. Takes note with appreciation of the report of the Administrator;
- 2. <u>Welcomes</u> the intention of the Administrator to prepare, in co-operation with the United Nations Commissioner for Namibia, a comprehensive report on development problems of an independent Namibia, as he did in the case of Zimbabwe, taking also into account the activities under the Nationhood Programme for Namibia;

- 3. Requests the Administrator to continue to assist efficiently and with the maximum of flexibility the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity, bearing in mind the comments made in this respect during the debate;
- 4. Also requests the Administrator to study the possibility of financing out of the indicative planning figures for national liberation movements the participation of several representatives of the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity in meetings convened by the United Nations Development Programme, including the sessions of the Governing Council, as this will contribute to their familiarization with issues being discussed at those meetings;
- 5. Further requests the Administrator to continue to report to the Council on assistance to national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity.

729th meeting 24 June 1981

81/13. Assistance to the Palestinian people

The Governing Council,

Recalling its decision 79/18 of 26 June 1949, 3/,

- 1. Takes note of the progress that has been made in the implementation of decision 79/18;
- 2. <u>Urges</u> all concerned parties to assist in the full implementation of that decision;
- 3. Authorizes the Administrator to increase, where necessary, the notional amount of expenditures for projects listed in document DP/410, keeping within the over-all allocation of \$3.5 million from the Programme Reserve;
- 4. Requests the Administrator to report the Governing Council on this subject at its twenty-ninth session.

727th meeting 23 June 1981

81/14. Report of the Administrator for 1980

The Governing Council

1. Takes note with appreciation of the report of the Administrator for 1980 (DP/510 and Add.1) and of the basic and supplementary programme data for 1980 contained in documents DP/511 and Corr.1, DP/512 and Add.1 and DP/525;

- 2. <u>Commends</u> the Administrator for his efforts to improve programme performance, for the growing service functions on behalf of development performed by the Programme at the field level and for the substantial continued growth in programme delivery achieved during the year;
- 3. Takes note also of the reports of the Joint Inspection Unit submitted to the Council at its twenty-seventh session on the Commonwealth Caribbean Project for the Education and Training of Allied Health Personnel (JIU/REP/79/17) and on the Asia-Pacific Institute for Broadcasting Development (JIU/REP/80/2), as well as the relevant comments of the Secretary-General thereon, as contained in documents DP/500/Add.l and DP/501/Add.l, respectively;
- 4. Requests the Administrator to take into account, as appropriate, those recommendations of the Inspectors designed to enhance the quality of UNDP-supported programmes and projects and to increase the over-all effectiveness and efficiency of the Programme.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/15. Revised country programming procedures

The Governing Council,

Having considered the Administrator's report on the implementation of revised county programming policies and procedures for the third pogramming cycle, 1982-1986 (DP/518 and Corr.1 and Add.1) and the oral statement of the Assistant Administrator on the implementation of Governing Council decision 80/9 of 14 June 1980, 4/ concerning intercountry programming (see DP/SR.709),

Noting the recommendations of the Administrator for procedural changes in the country programming process,

Appreciating the concern expressed in the Governing Council that country and regional programmes should respond to the priority needs for technical co-operation established by the Governments individually and collectively, and at the same time take account of global priorities established in intergovernmental forums,

Recognizing the need to make the UNDP country programming process more responsive to the requirements of individual Governments, and to simplify the preparation of country programme documents without affecting the quality of the programming of UNDP resources for development or the information on which the Council has to base its assessment of individual country programmes,

Taking into consideration General Assembly resolution 2688 (XXV) of 11 December 1970, containing the Consensus of the Governing Council, 3405 (XXX) of 28 November 1975 on new dimensions in technical co-operation and 32/197 of 20 December 1977 on the restructuring of the economic and social sectors of the United Nations system and Governing Council decisions 80/7 of 13 June 1980 $\underline{4}$ / and 80/9 of 17 June 1980, $\underline{4}$ /

1. Requests the Administrator to ensure that, in the dialogue between UNDP and individual Governments in establishing country programmes and with Governments collectively in formulating regional programmes, Governments will be informed on over-all global concerns enunciated in intergovernmental forums, bearing in mind their prerogative in preparing their own country programmes;

图》的识别

- 2. Takes note with approval of the steps taken by the Administrator for the implementation of Governing council decision 80/9;
- 3. Requests the Administrator to ensure that the timing of individual country programmes is decided in full agreement between the Government and the Resident Representative, bearing in mind (a) the provisions of paragraph 7 of the Consensus; (b) the need to avoid gaps between successive country programmes; and (c) the desirability of timely submission for the Council's approval of new country programmes;
- 4. Endorses the Administrator's proposals for the approval of extensions of country programmes contained in the addendum to his report (DP/518/Add.1);
- 5. Endorses the Administrator's decision to continue to examine carefully the proposed use of programme resources for equipment in country programmes which are to be submitted to the Governing Council, bearing in mind paragraph 48 of the Consensus and subparagraph (e) (iv) of the annex to General Assembly resolution 3405 (XXX), as well as his decision (DP/522, para. 21) regarding information to the Governing Council on the proposed use of programme resources, and requests the Administrator to submit to it at its twenty-ninth session an in-depth study on this matter, taking into account all pertinent factors;
- 6. Endorses the Administrator's proposals for continuous programming contained in paragraphs 5 to 28 of his report (DP/518 and Corr.1);
- 7. Endorses the Administrator's proposal (DP/518, para. 25) to submit to the Governing Council annual progress reports on programme implementation in each region, highlighting significant developments in selected individual programmes;
- 8. Endorses the Administrator's proposals for the simplification of country programme documents, including the use of short-format documents for country programmes of \$20 million and less, including cost sharing;
- 9. Approves the Administrator's recommendations to discontinue, for country programmes of \$20 million or less, including cost sharing, the submission of an accompanying note by the Administrator and to accept their presentation with the Administrator's recommendation only;
- 10. Endorses the Administrator's proposal to convene a special meeting of the Governing Council in February 1983 to facilitate the timely approval of new country programmes for the third programming cycle.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

The Governing Council,

Mindful of the continuing urgent problems of development which are faced by peoples of developing countries, and reaffirming that the attainment of individual and collective self-reliance of the developing countries would make an important contribution to the ultimate solution of those problems,

Recalling General Assembly resolutions 3201 (S-VI) and 3202 (S-VI) of 1 May 1974, containing the Declaration and the Programme of Action on the Establishment of a New International Economic Order, and 35/56 of 5 December 1980, containing the International Development Strategy for the Third United Nations Development Decade,

Taking into account the current world economic situation,

Bearing in mind the role of the United Nations Development Programme in multilateral technical co-operation for the economic and social development of developing countries as defined by the General Assembly in its resolutions 2688 (XXV) of 11 December 1980 and 3405 (XXX) of 28 November 1975,

Taking into account the need for achieving adequate real growth of the Programme in the period 1982-1986, and the prevalence of significant world-wide inflation,

Taking note with concern of the results of the consultations carried out by the Administrator in compliance with Governing Council decision 80/30 of 26 June 1980, 4/ which indicate that the resources available to UNDP in the third cycle, 1982-1986, may fall short of the total envisaged in that decision,

Taking note also of the reports of the Administrator (DP/517, DP/519, DP/565),

1. Reaffirms its decision 80/30 of 26 June 1980;

2. <u>Decides</u>:

- (a) To retain, for the purposes of forward planning, the level of resources envisaged for the third cycle in decision 80/30, which requires an assumed over-all average annual growth of voluntary contributions of 14 per cent on a cumulative basis from the level set for 1977-1981, and to request the Administrator to continue his consultations with donor countries, with a view to reaching the level envisaged for 1982-1986, and to report on the result of those consultations to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session;
- (b) To request all countries, especially those with which, in comformity with decision 80/30, the Administrator has had consultations, to reconsider the magnitude of their third-cycle contributions, and to urge those donors who may lag behind in the first part of the third cycle to compensate, taking into account the level of their contributions, with increased contributions in the latter part of the cycle, each nation determining its own contribution so that the over-all resource objective of decision 80/30 is achieved;

(c) To request, in full conformity with decision 80/30, all countries, in particular those whose previous contributions may have been below their capacity to pledge, to reconsider increasing substantially their present levels of contributions to UNDP, so as to help achieve a more balanced country pattern of resource mobilization for the Programme in 1982-1983;

学学是"现在"的"公司"。

(d) To consider at its twenty-ninth session the report referred to in paragraph 2 (a) above with a view to deciding on ways and means of securing adequate resource mobilization for the third cycle;

3. Further decides:

- (a) To confirm the third-cycle country, intercountry and unallocated illustrative indicative planning figures (IPFs), and the illustrative magnitudes for the Programme Reserve, special industrial services and sectoral support, as approved by the Council in its decision 80/30;
- (b) To approve the newly established and the revised third-cycle illustrative indicative planning figures as recommended by the Administrator in documents DP/519 (paras. 37, 39, 40, 48, and 49) and DP/565, and to approve, for countries for which a recommendation on such figures has not yet been submitted to the Council, the use of second-cycle figures as illustrative third-cycle figures until the twenty-ninth session, when the Council will consider the Administrator's specific recommendations;
- (c) To request the Administrator to ensure the delivery of technical co-operation projects to the fullest extent of the 1982-1986 IPFs and other elements in the field programme as set out in document DP/496, table 2, always subject to the overriding requirement of containing expenditures within the financial resources available at any given time, so as to preserve the financial integrity of the Programme, and, within these limits, to endeavour to achieve a high level of delivery in 1982;
- 4. <u>Urges</u> the Administrator to reduce the size of the administrative budget of the Programme in the third cycle and <u>decides</u>, in order to maximize the availability of resources for programme activities in developing countries, to establish, as general guidelines for the third cycle, that the administrative budget should not, in any case, rise, in real terms, beyond the levels approved for the 1982-1983 budget, and that any justifiable need for additional resources tied with an increase in programme delivery should be met by redeployment of staff and other facilities;
- 5. Requests host Governments with UNDP field offices that are in a position to do so to increase significantly their contributions towards meeting the local costs of such offices, bearing in mind the level of their contributions, and requests the Administrator to consult with Governments on this matter and to report on the results of those consultations at the twenty-ninth session with a view, inter alia, to enabling the Governing Council to evolve guidelines within the framework of which the Administrator could consult Governments for meeting local costs of UNDP field offices;

- 6. Reaffirms the central funding and co-ordinating role of the Programme in the field of technical co-operation within the United Nations system in conformity with the Consensus of 1970 and General Assembly resolutions 32/197 of 20 December 1977, 33/202 of 29 January 1979 and 35/81 of 5 December 1980, recommends to the relevant intergovernmental bodies that the need to preserve this role should be taken fully into account in the consideration of funding arrangements for technical co-operation activities, and authorizes the Administrator to provide to the interested intergovernmental bodies the information they may request in this respect on the services available within UNDP;
- 7. Decides provisionally, taking into account the particular position of the host country concerned, to raise the ceiling on cost-sharing activities to double the present level in the case of those financed by the IPF recipient country and to increase by 50 per cent the present limit for those financed by third parties, it being understood that existing legislation on the reimbursement of administrative and programme support costs will apply, and requests the Administrator to submit to the Council at its twenty-ninth session an in-depth study, prepared in consultation with host Government authorities of a representative group of countries which utilize cost sharing, focusing in particular on the actual added costs resulting from cost-sharing activities within the framework of total costs of services provided by UNDP field offices, in order to enable the Council to reconsider the question of cost sharing, taking into account all relevant factors, including agreements already in force;
- 8. <u>Decides</u>, in order to accomplish the basic objectives of the Programme, namely promoting self-reliance and raising the living standards, technical capacity and economic and social development of the developing countries, that the following provisions shall apply to the payment and utilization of contributions:
- (a) Recipient countries with a per capita gross national product of more than \$3,000 which make their voluntary contributions wholly or in part in their national non-convertible currencies shall, as far as possible, contribute in convertible currencies over and above the reimbursement stipulated in paragraph 6 (e) (iii) of decision 80/30;
- (b) In view of the multilateral nature of the Programme, non-recipient donor countries which make their voluntary contributions wholly or partly in (their national) non-convertible currencies (shall pay) (are requested if possible to pay) a gradually increasing share of their contributions in convertible currencies (so that their contributions will be fully convertible by the year 1985);
- (c) Meanwhile, entities headquartered in net donor countries which have contributed in non-convertible currencies where such currencies are accumulated and until such accumulations are used shall be reimbursed for services and equipment purchased under the Programme (only in the currency of that country) (in the currencies in which their contribution is paid): (conversely, if, when utilizing a non-convertible contribution, costs are incurred in other currencies, these shall be reimbursed to UNDP in the form of a convertible share of the non-convertible contributions):]

9. Decides to extend the authority of the Administrator, further to the Council's decision at its twenty-first session, 7/ to approve projects through the period 1982-1986, it being understood that such delegation would be subject to review by the Governing Council within that period if the Council so wished, and that certain categories of projects would continue to be submitted by the Administrator to the Governing Council for approval, as specified in paragraphs 20 and 23 of the Consensus and amplified by the Governing Council at its thirteenth session;

经验证的证据,是是证明的证据的证据

10. Endorses the Administrator's request, having regard to paragraphs 53 to 57 of document DP/519, to apply in the current cycle an amount of up to \$20 million for certain intercountry programmes, by borrowing from the 1982-1986 indicative planning figures of those programmes, it being understood that this level of borrowing will be within the amount of underspending that is expected in the total indicative planning figures in the current cycle.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/17. Assistance for the rehabilitation and reconstruction of Uganda

The Governing Council,

Having considered the reports of the Administrator on assistance for the rehabilitation and reconstruction of Uganda (DP/520, paras. 79-83 and DP/564) in the light of the additional information provided in his statement by the Assistant Administrator and Director of the Regional Bureau for Africa (see DP/SR.726), as well as by members of the Governing Council who participated in the debate,

Recalling General Assembly resolution 35/103 of 5 December 1980, and Governing Council decision 80/17 of 26 June 1980, $\frac{4}{4}$

Recognizing the special situation being faced by Uganda as a result of the mismanagement of the country's economy during the 1970s compounded by war damages and a persistent and severe drought,

Considering the determination of the new Government of Uganda to overcome this situation as soon as possible,

- Takes note with appreciation of the Administrator's report;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to co-operate closely with and to assist the Government of Uganda in its efforts of rehabilitation and reconstruction;
- 3. Also requests the Administrator to assist the Government of Uganda, in co-operation with other donor agencies, in the organization of a donor conference that would enable Uganda to mobilize international support for its programme of rehabilitation and reconstruction;

^{7/} Ibid., Sixty-first Session, Supplement No. 2 (E/5779), para. 241.

4. <u>Decides</u> to review again Uganda's situation at its twenty-ninth session and <u>requests</u> the Administrator to prepare, for that purpose, a report on the implementation of UNDP assistance to Uganda.

729th meeting 24 June 1981

81/18. Assistance to Lebanon

The Coverning Council,

Recalling its decision 80/30 of 26 June 1980, 4/

Considering the difficult situation of Lebanon and the urgent need for its development,

Convinced that, unless a concerted effort is undertaken to assist Lebanon in overcoming its present difficulties, the adverse effect on its future development can cause serious problems in the region,

<u>Decides</u> to defer the determination of the illustrative indicative planning figure for Lebanon until the twenty-ninth session of the Council, and to consider this question at that time as a matter of priority and with a view to increasing UNDP assistance.

733rd meeting 26 June 1981

81/19. Implementation of decisions adopted by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session

The Governing Council

- 1. Takes note of the Administrator's report (DP/516) on implementation of Governing Council decisions 80/8 of 17 June 1980 and 80/26 and 80/28 of 26 June 1980, 4/ and of the progress achieved in the implementation of General Assembly resolutions relating to the restructing of the economic and social sectors of the United Nations system;
- 2. Notes with appreciation the progress achieved in the designation of Resident Co-ordinators as further evidence of the implementation of General Assembly resolutions relating to the restructing of the economic and social sectors of the United Nations system;
- 3. Requests the Administrator to pursue, through the appropriate machinery, consultations on more uniform procedures to facilitate the administration of development co-operation, with special emphasis on the least developed countries;

4. Authorizes the Administrator to implement the proposal contained in paragraph 7 of General Assembly resolution 35/80 of 5 December 1980 on the role of qualified national personnel in the social and economic development of the developing counries, and to disseminate information on the national experience of countries in training qualified national personnel and in enhancing their role in national social and economic development, as set out in paragraph 11 of his report, and to that end to utilize Programme resources in the amount of \$80,000;

Company of

5. Requests the Administrator to submit the report called for in paragraph 8 of General Assembly resolution 35/80 through the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/20. Improvement of the methods and procedures for the recruitment of project professional staff and consultants

The Governing Council,

Having considered the report of the Administrator (DP/558 and Corr.1), in particular section IV dealing with the recruitment of project professional staff and consultants,

Taking into account General Assembly resolution 35/81 of 5 December 1980 on the comprehensive policy review of operational activities for development,

Recognizing that there is need for improvement of the methods and procedures for the recruitment of project professional staff and consultants, especially from developing countries,

- 1. Invites the countries that have not yet established national expert recruitment services to consider doing so and those that have such services to strengthen the existing ones;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to assist developing countries, at their request, in either establishing or strengthening their national expert recruitment services:
- 3. <u>Further requests</u> the Administrator, in consultation, as appropriate, with the participating and executing agencies, to submit to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session a report containing:
- (a) Detailed information on the existing rules, procedures and practices of the United Nations Development Programme and the participating and executing agencies for the preparation and updating of the rosters of project professional staff and consultants;

- (b) Detailed information regarding the rules, procedures and practices that ensure that a job description and/or terms of reference of vacancies for experts and consultants for UNDP-supported activities are always made available in due time to all national expert recruitment services, for their review and submission of qualified candidates;
- (c) Suggestions and recommendations, in the light of the information referred to in subparagraphs (a) and (b) above, for improving the methods and procedures for the recruitment of project professional staff and consultants and for ensuring that the best qualified experts are being recruited world-wide for UNDP-supported projects.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/21. Government execution and management; project design, monitoring and evaluation; and UNDP-financed experts

The Governing Council,

Having considered the report of the Administrator (DP/558 and Corr.1), as well as the comments of representatives of Governments made at the twenty-eighth session of the Governing Council,

Recalling the decision adopted at its twenty-third session, 8/

Taking into account paragraph 10 of General Assembly resolution 35/81 of 5 December 1980 on the comprehensive policy review of operational activities for development,

- 1. Requests the Administrator, in co-operation with the organizations of the United Nations system:
- (a) To give full considertion, in discharging his responsibility for the designation of executing agents, to implementation of United Nations Development Programme assistance by the host Governments, bearing in mind the views expressed by members of the Council on the proposals contained in his report;
- (b) to review and analyse in greater detail the reasons for the lack of progress in implementing government execution and to report to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session on proposals for amendments to the financial and administrative arrangements for the implementation of United Nations Development Programme assistance to projects, with a view to further increasing the use of government execution; the report should include proposals for any change in financial and administrative procedures which might be necessary, with due regard to the need for meeting the normal financial and audit requirements of the United Nations system, and should identify the elements for which compensation for additional costs to recipient Governments resulting from government execution of

^{8/} Ibid., Sixty-third Session, Supplement No. 3 (E/5940), para. 76.

United Nations Development Programme-assisted projects should be considered and the manner in which such costs might be met;

and the state of

- (c) To examine how the implementation of United Nations Development Programme assistance by Governments will affect the workload of Programme field offices, particularly in least developed countries, to refer to the Council for consideration at its twenty-ninth session any proposals for additional staff that may be considered necessary, and to report to the Council any other administrative measures that may be taken in the mean time;
- 2. Takes note of the Administrator's view that any additional costs will be offset by savings in support costs;
- 3. <u>Invites</u> the Administrator, in co-operation and consultation with the organizations of the United Nations system, to improve, on the basis of the proposals contained in his report, project management and design, monitoring and evaluation in order further to enhance the quality of technical co-operation;
- 4. <u>Invites</u> Governments, the United Nations Development Programme and organizations of the United Nations system:
- (a) Increasingly to use qualified national Professional staff as an alternative to internationally recruited staff, on the basis of the contractual arrangements recommended by the Consultative Committee on Administrative Questions (Personnel), such as reimbursable loan agreements and service agreements, bearing in mind the importance to technical co-operation within the United Nations system of ensuring that the best-qualified advice and expertise should continue to be obtained;
- (b) To consider such other available options as alternatives to internationally recruited experts as non-resident nationals and institutional twinning, keeping in mind the specific requirements of each project and the availability of qualified national resources;
- 5. Requests the Administrator to keep the Governing Council informed of the implementation of the present decision.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/22. Pre-investment activities

The Governing Council

- 1. Takes note with appreciation of the report of the Administrator on pre-investment activities (DP/521) and of the views expressed during the discussion of the report;
- 2. Endorses the revised definition of pre-investment presented by the Administrator after consultation with the participating and executing agencies (DP/521, foot-note 6);

- 3. <u>Invites</u> Governments, in preparing their country programmes, to give due priority to pre-investment activities;
- 4. Requests the Administrator to further strengthen Programme relationships with multilateral financial institutions and regional development banks and, where appropriate, with other sources of finance, and also to associate them with United Nations Development Programme-assisted projects at an early stage with a view to promoting follow-up investment;
- 5. Requests the Administrator, in co-operation with the agencies, to strengthen his efforts with a view to ensuring that Governments receive needed advice in the identification and formulation of pre-investment projects;
- 6. <u>Takes note</u> of the concept of the reimbursable aid arrangement between the United Nations Development Programme and the multilateral financial institutions and regional development banks;
- 7. Endorses the plans made by the Administrator for the continuation of the training courses for the resident representatives and deputy resident representatives and requests the Administrator to extend, within available resources, such training to agency staff and, upon request of host Governments, to government counterparts;
- 8. <u>Further requests</u> the Administrator to evaluate training for pre-investment activities and submit his report to the Council at its thirtieth session;
- 9. Authorizes an additional amount of \$100,000 out of the Programme Reserve for 1981 for the implementation of co-operative arrangements with the agencies as described in the Administrator's report (<u>ibid</u>., paras. 4-9), on the understanding that in future years the pre-investment work should be included in the design of pre-investment projects and the necessary provision made in the budget of such projects;
- 10. Requests the Administrator to report on United Nations Development Programme involvement in pre-investment activities to the Council at its twenty-ninth session.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/23. Country and intercountry programmes and projects

Ι

The Governing Council

Takes note of the report of the Administrator on trends and problems in the country programmes proposed for approval in 1981 (DP/522), as well as the comments made thereon by the representatives of Governments.

729th meeting 24 June 1981

II

The Governing Council

- 1. Approves the proposed country programmes for Bangladesh (DP/GC/BGD/R.3), Bhutan (DP/GC/BHU/R.3), Bulgaria (DP/GC/BUL/R.3), the Congo (DP/GC/PRC/R.2), Cuba (DP/GC/CUB/R.3), Egypt (DP/GC/EGY/R.3 and Corr.1), Kenya (DP/GC/KEN/R.4), Maldives (DP/GC/MDV/R.3), Mauritius (DP/GC/MAR/R.3), Nepal (DP/GC/NEP/R.3), the Philippines (DP/GC/PHI/R.3 and Corr.1), Poland (DP/GC/POL/R.3) and Rwanda (DP/GC/RWA/R.3) for the duration of their respective programme periods and within the limits of the financial resources available from the relevant portions of their indicative planning figures for the periods 1977-1981 and 1982-1986;
- 2. Approves the proposed country programme for Viet Nam (DP/GC/VIE/R.2) for the duration of its programme period and within the limit of the financial resources available from the relevant portions of its indicative planning figures for the periods 1977-1981 and 1982-1986, and requests the Administrator to report to the Council, at its twenty-ninth session, on the steps set forth in paragraph 6 of his programme recommendation (DP/GC/VIE/R.2/RECOMMENDATION);
- 3. Further requests the Administrator to report to the Council on action taken in pursuance of paragraph 2 above and to submit to the Council those projects which, in accordance with paragraph 20 of the Consensus and paragraphs 102 and 106 of the Council's report on its thirteenth session, 9/ require the Council's consideration and approval;

^{9/} Ibid., Fifty-third Session, Supplement No. 2 (E/5092).

4. Authorizes the Administrator to proceed with appraisal and approval of requests for assistance falling within the outlines of the respective country programmes while ensuring, in accordance with the decision taken by the Governing Council at its eighteenth session, 10/ that expenditures are kept in conformity with the relevant IPFs and are contained within the financial resources actually available at any given time, and that the relevant provisions of decision 81/16 of 27 June 1981 are taken fully into account in the event of a short-fall in resources during the third programming cycle.

730th to 732nd meetings 15 and 26 June 1981

III

The Governing Council

- 1. Takes note with appreciation of the intercountry programme for Asia and the Pacific for the third cycle, 1982-1986, presented by the Administrator (DP/523);
- 2. Requests the Administrator to proceed with appraisal and approval of requests for assistance falling within the outlines of the intercountry programme for Asia and the Pacific, ensuring that expenditures are kept in conformity with the relevant IPF and are contained within the financial resources actually available at any given time, and that the relevant provisions of decision 81/16 of 27 June 1981 are taken fully into account in the event of a short-fall in resources during the third programming cycle;
- 3. Requests the Administrator to take into account in the implementation of the programme the views expressed during its consideration by the representatives of Governments.

732nd meeting 26 June 1981

ΙV

The Governing Council

1. Approves the following global projects:

Special Programme for Research and Training in Tropical Diseases (Phase II) (GLO/80/005) (DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.1);

International Centre for Insect Physiology and Ecology: Development of Long-range Means of Control of Crop and Livestock Pests and Diseases (GLO/81/004) (DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.2 and Corr.1);

^{10/} Ibid., Fifty-seventh Session, Supplement No. 2A (E/5543/Rev.1), para. 17.

Testing and Demonstration of Small-scale, Solar-powered Pumping System (GLO/78/004) (DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.3);

Research and Development in Integrated Resource Recovery (GLO/80/004) (DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.4);

International Crops Research Institute for the Semi-Arid Tropics (ICRISAT): West African Sorghum and Millet Improvement Programme (Phase III) (GLO/81/002) (DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.5 and Corr.1);

Research, Graining and Production Programme for Nutritional Quality Maize, Supported by Farm-level Surveys (GLO/78/009) (DP/PROJECTS/R.14/Add.6 and Corr.1);

2. Authorizes the Administrator to make the appropriate arrangements for the execution of these projects.

733rd meeting 26 June 1981

V

The Governing Council

- 1. Takes note of the report of the Administrator on the global and interregional programmes (DP/524 and Add.1) and of the comments made thereon by the representatives of Governments;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to take into account in the implementation of those programmes the views expressed during their consideration by the representatives of Governments.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/24. Report of the Working Group of Government Experts on its review of the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration

The Governing Council

- 1. Takes note of the report of the Working Group of Government Experts (E/1981/23) and the views expressed thereon;
- 2. Reaffirms that the functions and scope of the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration should include assisting countries in their efforts to pursue the findings of a solid minerals exploration project in such a way as to improve its chances of reaching the stage of exploitation, and agrees that, for such activities, the Fund may negotiate a replenishment contribution based on reimbursement to the Fund as specified in paragraph 35 of the report of the Working Group of Government Experts;

- 3. Confirms that the present 2 per cent rate of replenishment contributions in respect of solid minerals should be maintained, but with a concessional reduction of the rate to 1 per cent in the case of the least developed countries;
- 4. <u>Decides</u> that a ceiling of 10 times project costs at constant prices should be applied to repayment by recipient countries to the Fund for successful exploration projects for solid minerals;
- 5. Decides to review at its twenty-ninth sesion the possible expansion of the Fund's activities under its mandate to include geothermal energy, as recommended by the Working Group, in the light of relevant decisions taken at the United Nations Conference on New and Renewable Sources of Energy;
- 6. Requests the Administrator, with respect to paragraph 5 above, to report to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session on the nature and scope of requests for assistance in the field of geothermal energy, and the capacity of the Fund to respond thereto;
- 7. Recognizes the United Nations Development Programme's over-all role of policy guidance and co-ordination and that its administration of the Fund assures appropriate support to carry out its managerial and financial responsibilities;
- 8. Agrees that the Fund should maintain a core of technical staff for decision making, particularly in order to ensure adequate direction of all aspects of project selection, financing and management;
- 9. Endorses the recommendation of the Working Group of Government Experts that maximum use should be made of the technical services of the Division of Natural Resources and Energy of the Department of Technical Co-operation for Development for the operational activities of the Fund;
- 10. Decides that the Joint Operations Group of the Fund should be chaired by the Administrator or his representative;
- 11. Requests the Administrator to apply the necessary modifications to the present operational procedures and administrative arrangements (DP/142) of the Fund in accordance with the present decision;
- 12. Decides that a second review of the activities of the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration should be carried out at a later date, to be determined by the Governing Council;
- 13. Recommends that the Economic and Social Council take note of the report of the Working Group of Government Experts;
- 14. Further recommends to the Economic and Social Council the adoption of the following draft resolution:

"The Economic and Social Council

- "1. Takes note of Governing Council decision 81/24 of 23 June 1981;
- "2. Endorses the recommendations contained in that decision;

- "3. Decides to amend its resolution 1762 (LIV) of 18 May 1973 as follows:
 - "(a) Paragraph 1 (h) (ii): Payments by recipient participating States as specified in Project Agreements with the Fund;
 - "(b) Paragraph 1 (i): '... the rate of repayment and the length of the repayment period should be on the basis of the pertinent provisions contained in the operational procedures and administrative arrangements approved by the governing body of the Fund';
 - "(c) Paragraph 1 (m): 'The Governing Council of the United Nations Development Programme shall continue to be the governing body of the Fund';
- "4. <u>Urges</u> all States Members of the United Nations to recognize the need for additional voluntary contributions to the Fund to enable it to fulfil more adequately its mandate for the benefit of developing countries."

727th meeting 23 June 1981

81/25. Annual review of the financial situation, 1980

The Governing Council,

Having reviewed the Administrator's report on the review of the financial situation in 1980 (DP/547 and Corr.1),

- 1. Takes note with satisfaction of the continuing steady growth in programme delivery;
- 2. Notes with concern the increasing level of amounts outstanding to the United Nations Development Programme and, in this respect:
- (a) Invites Governments to pay amounts due to the United Nations Development Programme for 1981 and prior years, in full, before the end of calendar year 1981;
- (b) <u>Urges</u> Governments which are unable to make such payments during calendar year 1981 to indicate to the Administrator by 31 October 1981 the date, in early 1982, on which they expect to make payment;
- (c) <u>Calls upon</u> Governments to pay their annual pledge to the United Nations Development Programme as early as possible in the year for which the pledge is made, in order to avoid potential liquidity problems;
- (d) Requests the Administrator to consult with donor Governments to determine to what extent payment schedules can be established and to report to the Council at its twenty-ninth session on the results of those consultations;

- 3. Authorizes the carry-over of the committed balance of the Programme Reserve as at 31 December 1981 as an add-on to the authorized level of the Programme Reserve for the third cycle;
- 4. Authorizes an increase in the level of special industrial services from \$17.5 million to \$18.2 million for the 1977-1981 cycle, and further authorizes the transfer of \$0.7 million from the Programme Reserve to the special industrial services for this purpose;
- 5. Reaffirms its decision 79/43 of 2 July 1979 3/ with respect to loans to Governments for accommodation, and requests the Administrator to submit a detailed analytical report on the loans to Governments for accommodation of field personnel, both in terms of housing and office accommodation, at the twenty-ninth session;
- 6. Reaffirms paragraph 8 of its decision 79/35 of 2 July 1979 3/ with respect to cost sharing arrangements;
- 7. Reaffirms paragraph 11 of its decision 79/34 of 2 July 1979, 3/ in which it requested the Administrator to continue his efforts to increase the placement of UNDP funds in developing countries on the basis of safety, profitability, liquidity and convertibility.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/26. Supplementary budget estimates for the biennium 1980-1981

The Governing Council,

<u>Having considered</u> the supplementary estimates for the 1980-1981 biennial budget of the United Nations Development Programme and the funds administered by the Programme (DP/550 and Corr.1),

- 1. Takes note with appreciation of the report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions (DP/551) and reiterates the view that supplementary estimates should, in the future, be limited to unavoidable increases due to inflation or currency fluctuations or to the implications of specific requests of the Governing Council, and that the Administrator should not recruit staff in advance of specific authorization by the Council;
- 2. Request the Administrator to report to the Council at its twenty-ninth session on the 1980-1981 programme support and administrative services expenditures by detailed objects of expenditure, in addition to the information provided on a programme basis;
- 3. Approves the establishment of the following posts out of those proposed by the Administrator in paragraph 5 of document DP/550:
- (a) Three Professional and four General Service posts in the Division of Management Information Services;

- (b) Six Professional and eight General Service posts in the United Nations Capital Development Funds;
- (c) Two Professional and two General Service posts in the United Nations Volunteers;
- (d) Three Professional, two Field Service level and 20 locally-recruited General Service posts for the field office in the Democratic People's Republic of Korea;
- 4. Approves supplementary appropriations for the biennium 1980-1981 in an amount of \$39,558,400 gross to be allocated from the resources indicated in paragraph 5 below;
- 5. Resolves that the income estimates in an amount of \$7,597,700 as indicated below shall be used to offset the gross supplementary appropriations, resulting in net supplementary appropriations of \$31,960,700 as indicated below:

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
	Gross supplementary appropriations	the state of the s	Net supplementary appropriations
		(US dollars)	
Resources of UNDP			Political Property of the Prop
(i) UNDP (excluding OPE)	32,662,800	3,667,700	28,995,100
(ii) OPE (including support services)	3,202,900	3,202,900	<u>.</u>
(iii) UNV	817,600	423,900	393,700
(iv) UNCDF	1,668,800	202,700	1,466,100
Total UNDP	38,352,100	7,497,200	30,854,900
Resources of UNRFNRE			
United Nations Revolving Fund for National Resources Exploration	938,700	85,200	853 , 500
Resources of UNSO			
UNSO	267,600	15,300	252,300
Total supplementary appropriations	39,558,400	7,597,700	31,960,700

6. Further notes that the actions in paragraphs 4 and 5 above result in total 1980-1981 biennial budget appropriations as shown below:

	Gross appropriations	Estimated income	Net appropriations
		(US dollars)	
Resources of UNDP			
(i) UNDP (excluding OPE)	240,278,600	47,479,700	192,798 900
(ii) OPE (including support services)	12,320,500	12,320,500	·
(iii) UNV	4,432,100	682,000	3,750,100
(iv) UNCDF	3,314,000	414,200	2,899,800
(v) UNSO-UNDP/UNEP Joint Venture.	1,822,100	1,006,100 a/	816,000
Total UNDP	262,167,300	61,902,500	200,264 800
Resources of UNRFNRE			
United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration	2,513,400	266,400	2,247,000
Resources of UNSO			
UNSO	2,117,000	274,000	1,843,000
Total appropriations	266,797,700	62,442,900	204,354,800

 $[\]underline{\mathtt{a}}/$ Includes UNEP half-share of the cost of the joint venture institutional support.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/27. Budget estimates for the biennium 1982-1983

The Governing Council,

Having considered the estimates for the 1982-1983 biennial budget of the United Nations Development Programme and the funds administered by the Programme (DP/548),

Concerned about the rate of increase of the biennial budget, particularly at a time when the resources for programming purposes are becoming scarce,

Considering that the Administrator's assumptions on cost increases should be revised,

- 1. Takes note with appreciation of the report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions (DP/549 and Corr.1) and requests the Administrator to submit the budget estimates to the Advisory Committee in sufficient time for it to intensify the examination of the United Nations Development Programme budget in the future;
- 2. <u>Calls upon</u> the Administrator to exercise extreme caution in the use of United Nations Development Programme funds approved for the programme support and administrative services budget and to ensure that such expenditures are closely controlled;
- 3. <u>Decides</u>, without prejudice to paragraph 4 below, to reduce the Administrator's proposed appropriations for the programme support and administrative services budget by \$7 million gross;
- 4. Approves the establishment of the following posts out of those proposed by the Administrator:
- (a) One Professional post and one General Service post for the Emergency Co-ordination Unit;
- (b) Two Professional and four General Service posts for the United Nations Volunteers:
 - (c) One Professional post for Regional Information Officer, Arab States:
- 5. Approves an additional appropriation of \$2.5 million from United Nations Development Programme resources to be reflected as a separate appropriation line within the 1982-1983 biennial budget entitled "Transitionary measures in 1982 due to the reallocation of posts between duty stations";
- 6. Authorizes the Administrator to utilize the appropriation approved under paragraph 5 above to accommodate the payments for terminations with proper notice following the reduction of posts in certain field offices necessitated by the distribution of IPFs for the third cycle, the modalities of which will be subject to the concurrence of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions;

- 7. Further authorizes the Administrator to utilize the appropriation approved under paragraph 5 above to fund a maximum of 100 locally-recruited staff during the period from 1 January to 1 July 1982 above the currently approved staffing levels of 3,071 locally-recruited posts, to meet the cost of essential locally-recruited staff in those field offices where IPFs increase significantly in the third cycle compared with the second cycle;
- 8. Requests the Administrator to report to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session on action taken under paragraphs 6 and 7 above;
- 9. Approves appropriations in an amount of \$339,094,400 gross to be allocated from the resources indicated in paragraph 10 below to finance the 1982-1983 biennial budget;
- 10. Resolves that the income estimates in an amount of \$76,435,300 as indicated below shall be used to offset the gross appropriations, resulting in net budget appropriations of \$262,659,100 as indicated below:

	Gross appropriations	Estimated income	Net appropriations	
		(US dollars)		
Resources of UNDP		* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *		
(i) UNDP (excluding OPE)	303,129,100	57,663,800	245,465,300	
(ii) Transitory measures in 1982 due to the reallocation of posts between duty stations .	2,500,000		2,500,000	
(iii) OPE (including support services)	15,151,200	15,151,200 <u>a</u> /	, -	
(iv) UNV	5,461,500	871,000	4,590,500	
(v) UNCDF	4,359,100	558,300	3,800,800	
(vi) UNSO-UNDP/UNEP Joint Venture .	2,395,300	1,469,800 b/	925,500	
Total UNDP	332,996,200	75,714,100	257,282,100	
Resources of UNRFNRE	•			
United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration	3,075,500	309,100	2,766,400	
Resources of UNSO	٠.		\$	
UNSO	3,022,700	412,100	2,610,600	
Total appropriations	339,094,400	76,435,300	262,659,100	

a/ Includes estimated support cost reimbursements of \$2.4 million in respect of CDF-funded activities, \$1,272,700 in respect of UNSO-funded activities and \$300,000 in respect of UNRFNRE-funded activities.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

 $[\]underline{b}/$ Includes UNEP half-share of the cost of the joint venture institutional support.

81/28. UNDP financial regulations

The Governing Council,

Having considered the Administrator's proposed revision of the financial regulations of the United Nations Development Programme as contained in documents DP/552 and Add.1 and Corr.1, Add.2 and Corr.1 and Add.3,

Noting with appreciation the observations of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions as contained in its report (DP/553),

- 1. Approves the proposed UNDP financial regulations as contained in documents DP/552/Add.1 and Corr.1, Add.2 and Corr.1 and Add.3, as amended by the annex to the present decision, subject to the provisions of paragraph 2 below;
- 2. Decides, notwithstanding the absence of a consensus in respect of the Administrator's proposed regulations 3.5, 3.6, 12.3 and 12.4 and the newly proposed regulation 3.6, remaining in brackets, that all other regulations approved by the present decision are fully in effect and that, with respect to the five paragraphs remaining in brackets, the old financial regulations 6.4, 6.6, 4.2 and 4.3 shall, in the absence of such a consensus, apply until a decision is reached at the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council;
- 3. Requests the General Assembly to authorize the Governing Council of the United Nations Development Programme to formulate financial regulations in respect of all funds administered, or to be administered in future, by UNDP, thereby amending, in particular, the relevant provisions of the annex to General Assembly resolution 31/177 of 21 December 1976, by which was established the United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries, and those of Assembly resolutions 2186 (XXI) of 13 December 1966 and 2525 (XXIV) of 5 December 1969 concerning the United Nations Capital Development Fund;
- 4. Requests the Administrator, should the General Assembly take the action requested in paragraph 3 above, to prepare, where appropriate, annexes to the UNDP financial regulations covering the unique requirements of the funds and programmes entrusted to UNDP for administration, for consideration and approval by the Governing Council after being reviewed by the Advisory Commuttee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions;
- 5. Requests the Administrator to present to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session brief guidelines setting forth the fundamental principles and bases under which he would exercise his authority to establish trust funds, granted under the provisions of regulation 4.1;
- 6. Requests the Administrator to circulate the financial rules, promulgated in accordance with financial regulation 13.1, to members of the Governing Council, for information, at least 30 days before they become effective, thereby amending the request contained in paragraph 5 of its decision 80/38;

7. Requests the Administrator to submit to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session the guidelines developed pursuant to UNDP financial regulation 14.4.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

Annex

Regulation 1.1

The UNDP financial regulations shall not be applicable to UNFPA. Annex I to the UNDP financial regulations will state: "The UNDP financial regulations are not applicable to UNFPA which operates under its own financial regulations and rules as approved by the Governing Council in a decision taken at its seventeenth session." $\underline{11}/$

Regulation 2.1 (f)

Delete the last sentence "However the Administrator ..." (see new art. III and new regulation 3.1 below)

Regulation 2.2 - B

Delete "all foreseen"

Regulation 2.2 - C (iii)

Add at the end the words "received by UNDP"

Regulation 2.2 - C (iv)

Add at the end the words "received by UNDP"

Regulation 2.2 - E (i)

Replace the last word "desirable" with the word "justifiable"

Regulation 2.2 - F (ii)

Insert the word "accounting" between the words "independent" and "entity" Regulation 2.2 - P (ii)

Insert the word "accounting" between the words "independent" and "entity"

^{. 11/} Ibid., Supplement No. 2 (E/5466), para. 202 (f).

Regulation 2.2 - P (v)

<u>Delete</u> in its entirety. <u>Renumber</u> subsequent definitions under P (see regulation 2.2 - S below)

Regulation 2.2 - S

<u>Insert</u> "Special Programme Resources" and <u>include</u> the definition set forth for "Programme Reserve" deleted under regulation 2.2 - P (v) above

New article III

Retitle "Accountability"

New Regulation 3.1

Text to be the last sentence of currently proposed regulation 2.1 (f) without the first word "However" and with insertion of the words "of UNDP" after the word "Administrator" (the text to read "The Administrator of UNDP is fully ...").

All subsequent articles and regulations to be renumbered accordingly.

Regulation 3.5

Not approved pending consideration by the plenary.

Regulation 3.6

Not approved pending consideration by the plenary.

Regulation 3.7

In the preambular paragraph, replace the words "shall be" with the word "are"

In subparagraph (b) of regulation 3.7, replace the first two sentences by the following: "(b) By making available, either in cash or in kind or both, a substantial part of the project's requirements, normally at least that part payable in local currency, except in cases of hardship". The text would continue with "In the light of policies ... project document".

Regulation 3.8

In the first sentence, replace the words "shall be" with the word "are"

Regulation 3.14

To read: "Individual donations of a value in excess of \$25,000 shall be accepted only with the prior approval of the Governing Council."

Regulation 4.1

Replace, in the second sentence, the word "may" by the word "shall" and add in the third sentence the words "in detail" after the word "reported"

Regulation 6.2

Insert the word "expected" before the words "... resources formulated ...".

Add a new sentence at the end as follows: "In cases where it would seem that the objective had been over-estimated, the Governing Council would take the necessary measures to revise the over-all target referred to in regulation 6.1 above."

Regulation 6.4

Replace the words "Programme Reserve" with the words "Special Programme resources"

Regulation 7.10 (d)

Replace the first clause of the second sentence "To the extent ... Government or Governments" by the words "Keeping in mind the principle of Government execution,"

Regulation 7.10 (e)

To read:

"Under conditions established by the Governing Council, the Administrator is also authorized, subject to the agreement of the requesting Government or Governments, to contract for the services of other agencies, private firms or individual experts in the execution of projects and to assign projects to a governmental or intergovernmental institution or agency not part of the United Nations system, or to UNDP itself for execution."

Regulation 7.10 (f)

Insert the words "authorized by the Governing Council" after the words
"executing agencies"

Regulation 8.7

Last clause to read as follows: "... statements as may be requested by the Governing Council or as the Administrator may deem necessary and useful"

Regulation 11.1

Insert the word "accounting" before the word "entitles" in the last line

Regulation 11.2 (a)

In the last paragraph, after (iv), after the words "regular session and" replace the remainder of the text with the following: "between sessions, to members of the Governing Council as may be prescribed by the Council or whenever the situation in the Administrator's opinion so merits"

Regulation 11.3

Insert the word "accounting" before the words "... entity and trust fund"

Regulation 12.3

Not approved pending consideration by the plenary.

Regulation 12.4

Not approved pending consideration by the plenary.

Regulation 13.1 (a)

Add the following to the end of the present text: "and circulate the financial rules to members of the Governing Council for information at least 30 days before they become effective"

Regulation 13.3

Revised text to read as follows: "The Administrator may make such ex gratia payments not exceeding \$40,000 as he deems to be necessary in the interest of UNDP, provided that such payments shall be submitted to the General Assembly and the Governing Council with the accounts."

Regulation 13.5

To read: "In conformity with decisions taken by the General Assembly, in particular in resolution 2688 (XXV), annex, paragraphs 41, 42 and 44, and resolution 3405 (XXX), annex, and guidelines issued by the Governing Council, the Administrator shall be responsible for the purchasing of equipment and supplies and the contracting of services where budgetary provision has been made in the biennial budget and in the budgets of projects which UNDP itself executes."

Regulation 14.4

To read: "Notwithstanding the provisions of regulation 14.1, the Administrator may issue guidelines, regarding the procurement of equipment, supplies and services in accordance with the principles approved by the General Assembly and in particular the Consensus of 1970, resolution 2688 (XXV), annex, paragraphs 41, 42 and 44, and resolution 3405 (XXX), annex. Such guidelines shall be drawn up in consultation with the executing agencies which are organizations of the United Nations system and submitted to the members of the Governing Council in accordance with regulation 13.1."

Regulation 16.2

Delete the words "any such" after the words "shall submit". The text would then read "... shall submit audit reports annually ..."

81/29. Evaluation programme

The Governing Council

Takes note with appreciation of the progress report of the Administrator on thematic evaluations (DP/515) and the extract from the evaluation study entitled "Institutional Infrastructure for Trade Promotion at the National Level - a Joint UNDP/ITC Programme Evaluation" (DP/515/Add.1).

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/30. Establishment of a UNDP study programme

The Governing Council

- 1. Requests the Administrator, subject to the availability of resources, to establish a UNDP study programme to be financed by voluntary contributions of Governments, international institutions and private foundations, and to organize seminars to which high-level national policy-makers, government representatives to international organizations, senior secretariat officials and field experts should be invited to discuss informally various aspects of technical co-operation in order to promote greater understanding of development problems and to generate new resources and ideas:
- 2. Requests the Administrator to consult with interested Governments, international institutions and private foundations in order to ensure the necessary financing for a UNDP study programme;
- 3. <u>Invites</u> member Governments and relevant international organizations and foundations to finance the programme and to co-operate with the Administrator in organizing the activities of this programme;
- 4. Requests the Administrator to report to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session on the implementation of the present decision.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

ه مودد <u>در الطواد التي المد</u> ميد درود و المعيد ما حدد در المعيد و زوا <u>ورود کار از الرأد و الراد الما الما الما الم</u>

Annex

ESTABLISHMENT OF UNDP STUDY PROGRAMME

A. Issues and background

1. The decade of the 1980s was born into a period of tumultuous international economic relations. The world economy at present is in a slowdown phase, in both developed and developing countries. The rate of growth of developed market economy countries, which averaged more than 5 per cent per annum in the early 1970s, declined to 1.3 per cent in 1980 according to recent estimates. Similarly, the

rather good growth performance of developing countries, averaging nearly 6 per cent per annum in the 1970s, decreased to 3.8 per cent in 1980. Inflation and unemployment are at the highest levels since the great depression of the 1930s. Current trends indicate movement toward a more sombre future for the world economy and international development co-operation.

- 2. In the 1950s and 1960s, the economic development of developed and developing countries was largely considered to be two separate issues and not as being interlinked and interdependent. In the early 1950s, development problems were seen largely in terms of aid. By the 1970s, however, it became evident that these problems could not be solved merely by the provision of aid, since they were fundamentally part of the weakness of the existing world economic system.
- There are many lessons to be drawn from the experiences of the past few decades. At present not only are more resources required for assisting developing countries, but also greater understanding and technical knowledge of development issues and political determination are needed to remedy the existing situation. Similarly, owing to insufficient public knowledge, there has been little recognition of the interdependence between issues and of the mutuality of interest and opportunities for partnership between developed and developing countries. According to the report of the Brandt Commission, international institutions need to communicate to an audience wider than the community of persons who participate in their intergovernmental bodies. The resolutions, decisions and programmes adopted by these institutions can be effective only if they influence the public at large. On the other hand, it may be said that public opinion in industrialized countries has often been critical of assistance given to the developing countries. The mass media have given much publicity to cases of waste and failure, instead of to the aims of such assistance, to mutual gains and success stories. approaches have also negatively influenced parliaments and governmental circles, which has resulted in scepticism and created resistance to the adoption of more liberal policies.
- 4. Therefore, it appears that there is an urgent need to bridge the intellectual gulf which growing dangerously between those who are directly involved in administering the aid programmes and those who are called upon to vote the requisite appropriations, as well as between governmental negotiators at international organizations and the internal policy-makers. It is essential that every effort be made to enable the national policy-makers and public mass media producers better to understand the implications of arguments on international economic and technical co-operation for their own people.
- 5. Moreover, during the past three decades, the programmes, organizations and agencies of the United Nations system dealing with operational development activities, which have acquired substantial experience and carried out extensive research within their own fields, have seldom had joint substantive exchanges of views and discussions for effectively combining their efforts, evaluating their accumulated knowledge and information and forecasting relevant developments for the attention of Governments. Similarly, at present, there is little dialogue between the negotiators at the global level and practitioners namely field experts, consultants and project managers who deal daily with specific development issues. It may be said that the general commitments agreed upon at the international level can produce tangible results only if convergent measures are being taken at every level.

- 6. As a programme for development and not simply a fund to finance technical co-operation, UNDP has a special responsibility to encourage a better understanding of development problems and the generation of new ideas and possible solutions. Indeed, the success of its operations depends largely on the conceptual framework of development and technical knowledge within which such operations are carried out. A better understanding of the issues involved in technical co-operation activities is required in order to respond promptly to the changing needs of the development process.
- 7. It is therefore proposed to establish a study programme for development issues under the umbrella of UNDP, to be known as the United Nations Development Programme Study Programme (UNDPSP). The output of such a programme may assist the Governing Council in its consideration of policy issues related to the operational activities carried out by the funds and programmes under its supervision. Similarly, the activities of the Programme may be beneficial to the General Assembly and the Economic and Social Council for their comprehensive policy review of operational activities and their consideration of other development issues.

B. Seminars

- 8. The new programme will organize and finance as do, for example, the United Nations Environment Programme and the United Nations Fund for Population Activities special seminars to discuss informally various aspects of technical and economic co-operation and development issues. Its aim will be to promote a better understanding of issues and to work out possible options and alternative courses of action, which may also be considered by the relevant intergovernmental bodies. The new programme may also finance and publish independent research activities related to technical co-operation and development.
- 9. Twenty to thirty invitees from developed and developing countries and relevant international organizations will participate in such seminars. According to the subject-matters, high-level government officials, government representatives to international organizations, senior secretariat officials and field experts of international organizations, parliamentarians, journalists, academicians, etc., will be invited to these seminars. The invitees will participate in their private capacities.
- 10. The Administrator, with the assistance of an advisory committee, will establish annual work programmes, which will include the subject-matter to be taken up by different seminars. The subjects to be discussed will be related to problems of development and technical co-operation.
- 11. At the early stages of UNDPSP, a maximum of three to four seminars will be organized per year. One of these will be for the senior officials of the United Nations system and will deal primarily with development co-operation problems. The seminars will normally be held in different developed and developing countries, depending on hosting facilities. In order to ensure to the extent possible that discussions are of a free and informal nature, retreat locations will be preferred. At the end of each seminar a short report will normally be issued, in order to bring the results to the attention of the Governing Council, the Economic and Social Council and the General Assembly. Depending on the nature of the discussions, however, there could also be off-the-record meetings.

C. Organization and management

- 12. The United Nations Development Programme Study Programme will be administered by the Administrator. An honorary advisory programme committee will be established to assist the Administrator to draw up a yearly programme of work for the subjects to be discussed at different seminars and for research activities to be carried out by independent researchers. For the related development policy matters of the programme, the Administrator will consult and closely co-operate with the Director-General for Development and International Economic Co-operation and seek, as appropriate, the advice of the executive heads of the relevant specialized agencies and organizations of the United Nations system.
- 13. The secretariat of the Governing Council will normally provide support services to the seminars and other activities of UNDPSP. Close co-operation and continuous working relationships will be established with the secretariats of other relevant organizations of the United Nations system for the carrying out of these functions.
- 14. The programme will pay the travel costs and other expenses of the participants in the seminars, finance research activities and publish reports of the seminars and the results of research activities. In order to meet the financial and administrative costs, a special trust account will be established for UNDPSP. Voluntary contributions from Governments, international institutions or foundations will be sought by the Administrator for financing the activities of the programme. Similarly, Governments, international institutions or foundations may also provide free hosting facilities for the seminars organized by the programme.

81/31. Technical co-operation among developing countries and the policies, rules and procedures of UNDP

The Governing Council,

Recalling the Buenos Aires Plan of Action for Promoting and Implementing Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries, 12/ endorsed by the General Assembly in its resolution 33/134 of 19 December 1978,

Recalling also Council decisions 79/29 of 19 June 1979 $\underline{3}/$ and 80/46 of 30 June 1980, 4/

1. <u>Takes note</u> of the report of the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries on its second session (TCDC/2/19); <u>13</u>/

2. Requests the Administrator:

- (a) To ensure that, for the period of the third programming cycle, earmarking from country IPFs for TCDC activities for the benefit of other countries does not exceed 10 per cent of the country's IPF or \$7.5 million, whichever is smaller;
- (b) To lift the present blanket restriction on the reimbursement of local currency costs;
- (c) To ensure that the following basic guidelines of technical co-operation among developing countries be used in assessing TCDC project proposals:
 - (i) TCDC activities or projects involve the deliberate and voluntary sharing or exchange of technical resources, skills and capabilities between two or more developing countries for their individual or mutual development;
 - (ii) TCDC is initiated, organized and managed primarily by developing countries themselves; in such a process Governments of developing countries would normally take the lead or responsibility; TCDC could also involve the participation of national public institutions, and, within the framework of the policies laid down by Governments of developing countries, private organizations and individuals;

^{12/} Report of the United Nations Conference on Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries, Buenos Aires, 30 August-12 September 1978 (United Nations publication, Sales No. E.78.II.A.ll and corrigendum), chap. I

^{13/} Subsequently issued as Official Records of the General Assembly, Thirty-sixth Session, Supplement No. 39 (A/36/39).

- (iii) The financing and project inputs, such as expertise, consultancy services, research and training facilities, equipment and supplies in TCDC activities, should be the primary responsibility of developing countries themselves and the country IPF should be considered to be a catalyst and a supplementary contribution; at its third session in 1983 the High-level Committee will, on the basis of financial data for the years 1980-1982 submitted by the Administrator of UNDP, consider guidelines for the share of earmarked IPF funds of total TCDC contributions;
 - (iv) TCDC can include all sectors and all kinds of technical co-operation activities of developing countries; it can be bilateral or multilateral in scope, subregional, regional or interregional in character; it should try, whenever possible, innovative approaches, methods and techniques particularly adapted to local needs, as well as existing modalities of technical co-operation to the extent that they are considered useful;
- (d) To allow that projects conforming to the basic guidelines enumerated in subparagraph (c) above may be financed from country IPFs subject to the existing rules and procedures established for UNDP as a whole, with regard to project assessment, approval, implementation and evaluation; within this framework, expenditure for provision of inputs necessary in the execution of projects should be allowed in the same manner and with the same flexibility as for the rest of UNDP;
- (e) To allow that advances, current payments and reimbursements from the IPF resources be made by UNDP in the currencies of expenditure on the inputs concerned, and shall be drawn as far as possible from the Programme's holding of such or any other suitable currencies;
- (f) To apply the following rules with regard to the reimbursement of certain local costs, associated with services and materials, which the Governments or national public or private institutions of the "IPF country" should primarily bear in accordance with paragraph 2 (c) (iii) above:
 - (i) Any part of the salary and allowances of professional staff and any part of the cost of contractual services payable in the home country of the staff or contractor would be reimbursable in the "IPF country" currency only;
 - (ii) The local currency cost of equipment and materials purchased would be reimbursable in the "IPF country" currency only;
- (g) To apply regular UNDP procedures related to approval of its assisted projects, compensation, hiring of national experts, procurement of equipment and services, subcontracting and related matters;
- (h) To incorporate the principles and criteria set out above into the standing guidelines and instructions of the UNDP Policies and Procedures Manual;
- 3. Also requests the Administrator, for the purpose of monitoring the guidelines of TCDC set out in paragraph 2 (c) above, to notify the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries at its third session and the Governing Council at its thirtieth session with respect to:

- (a) The relevant financial costs of projects funded from the country IPFs;
- (b) The amounts of IPF resources, if any, expended by UNDP in implementing the provisions of paragraph 2 (e) and (f) above;
- (c) The breakdown of expertise, equipment and supplies, consultancy services and training present in these projects.

733rd meeting 26 June 1981

81/32. Report of the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries on its second session

The Governing Council,

Recalling the Buenos Aires Plan of Action for Promoting and Implementing Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries, 12/ endorsed by the General Assembly in its resolution 33/134 of 19 December 1978,

Recalling also Council decision 80/46 of 30 June 1980, 4/

- 1. Takes note of the report of the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries on its second session (TCDC/2/19) 13/, in particular its decision 2/9;
- 2. <u>Decides</u> to allocate \$1 million from the Programme Reserve for TCDC promotional purposes for the first two years of the third programming cycle, 1982-1983:
- 3. Requests the Administrator to submit to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session a report on the use and proposed use of those funds, as well as a study on the possibility of financing TCDC activities from other sources, including the regional and interregional IPFs;
- 4. Further requests the Administrator to report to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session on the TCDC activities under the regional and interregional programmes for the third cycle;
- 5. Requests the Administrator to submit to the High-level Committee at its third session in 1983 the above-mentioned reports, together with any comments of the Governing Council and an assessment on the use of the funds allocated.

733rd meeting 26 June 1981

81/33. Enhancing the capabilities of maritime transport training institutions in developing countries

The Governing Council,

Recognizing the importance, in international economic development, of maritime transport among the developing countries and between them and the developed countries,

Recalling General Assembly resolution 35/56 of 5 December 1980, containing the International Development Strategy for the Third United Nations Development Decade, in which the international community is called upon to assist the developing countries in the maritime transport sector and in the infrastructure in the training of maritime personnel,

Taking note of decision 2/5 of the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries (see TCDC/2/19 13/) in which the Governing Council was requested to take steps to identify and strengthen national maritime transport training facilities with multinational scope in the developing countries.

- 1. Requests the Administrator, in co-operation with the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development, the Inter-Governmental Maritime Consultative Organization and other agencies to take the necessary measures to enhance the capabilities of maritime transport training institutions with multinational scope in the developing countries through, inter alia, interregional and regional programmes and assisting them with training specialists, training equipment and fellowships in the field of maritime transport;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to report to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session on the implementation of the present decision.

733rd meeting 26 June 1981

81/34. <u>Information on agency regular and extrabudgetary</u> technical co-operation expenditures

The Governing Council

- 1. Takes note of the report of the Administrator containing information on United Nations system regular and extrabudgetary technical co-operation expenditures in 1980 financed from sources other than UNDP (DP/545 and Corr.1);
- 2. Requests the Administrator to continue to provide this information to the Council until alternative arrangements for the provision of such data have been made within the United Nations system.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/35. United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries

The Governing Council,

Recalling resolution 122 (V) of 3 June 1979 of the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development 14/ on the Comprehensive New Programme of Action for the Least Developed Countries, and General Assembly resolution 35/205 of 16 December 1980 on the United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries to be held in September 1981,

Convinced that technical co-operation will continue to be an important element in the development process of the least developed countries, and recalling the role of UNDP in this respect,

- 1. Takes note of the report of the Administrator to the United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries (DP/554 and Corr.1);
- 2. Endorses the proposals of the Administrator to place, upon request, the intensive experience of UNDP in co-operation with the least developed countries, including the UNDP field establishment and the funds and programmes under UNDP administration, at the disposal of the international community in the manner consonant with the activities outlined in paragraph 52 of his report;
- 3. Takes note with appreciation of the support provided by UNDP for the preparation of the Conference;
- 4. Requests the Administrator to ensure the full participation of UNDP in the Conference itself and to undertake within existing administrative resources the necessary preparation effectively to discharge any role, consistent with its mandate, which might be requested of UNDP by the Conference regarding the implementation of the Substantial New Programme of Action for the 1980s;
- 5. Requests the Administrator to report to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session on how UNDP has responded to the recommendation of the United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries.

734th meeting 27 June 1981

^{14/} See Proceedings of the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development, Fifth Session, vol. I, Report and Annexes (United Nations publication, Sales No. E.79.II.D.14), part one, sect. A.

81/36. Relations between UNDP and external institutions

The Governing Council,

Takes note of the report of the Administrator on relations between UNDP and external institutions (DP/561) and of the introductory statement made thereon (see DP/SR.734).

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/37. Streamlining and rationalization of the work of the Governing Council

Ι

The Governing Council,

- 1. Decides, with respect to the role and function of the Council:
- (a) Henceforth to allocate and orient a well-defined part of its deliberations to major policy issues and emerging development in the operational activities carried out under its supervision on which immediate action is necessary; for this purpose, and in full accordance with its functions under the relevant resolutions of the General Assembly and the Economic and Social Council, the Governing Council will make recommendations, as appropriate, to the Member States participating in the Programme and will establish adequate policy guidelines and directives for the programmes and funds for which it is responsible;
- (b) That the agenda of the Council at each session will include, as a main item, policy reviews;
- (c) To define at each session which policy area or subject will be reviewed at the following session;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to prepare relevant documentation on the priority topic selected by the Council for review, including options and possible courses of action for its consideration;
 - 3. Decides, with respect to the sessions of the Council:
- (a) To hold a short part of its annual sessions at a high, senior policy-maker level for the purpose of considering issues which could provide the necessary dynamism to technical co-operation activities carried out under the supervision of the Council;
- (b) That, whenever required, short sessions may be held by the Council, immediately before or after regular sessions, to examine specific matters;

- (c) To hold a short special meeting prior to the twenty-ninth regular session for the consideration of country and intercountry programmes and a special meeting in February 1983 to facilitate the timely approval of new country programmes of the third programming cycle;
- (d) To hold an organizational meeting of one or two days duration at the beginning of February each year in New York to elect its bureau and to consider, if necessary, organizational matters;
- (e) To establish the agenda of each session, apart from items on organizational and other matters, under five main headings, namely, (i) policy review; (ii) programme implementation; (iii) programme planning; (iv) other funds and programmes; and (v) financial, budgetary and administrative matters, and <u>further decides</u> that it will consider biennially the question of technical co-operation among developing countries;
- (f) To conduct a broad policy review of other funds and programmes under its supervision biennially, beginning 1983, except for those funds whose activities must be considered annually in accordance with the relevant General Assembly resolutions;
- (g) To make introductory statements by the Administrator on separate funds or programmes consecutively, so as to provide Council members with the opportunity of expressing their views in one single intervention;
- (h) To establish a list of speakers for the consideration of the main items prior to the session and, during the session, to open and close a list of speakers before the consideration of each item;
- (i) That, except during the high-level segment of the Council's session, statements under each item, in principle, should last no more than 15 minutes;
- (j) That its meetings should start promptly, at the time for which they have been scheduled;
- (k) That arrangements, including interpretation, should be made for the servicing of at least one working group;
- (1) That in order to avoid proliferation of the decisions of the Council these decisions should be grouped, whenever possible, under a single heading and that documents which contain proposals having financial implications, in accordance with decision 79/33 of 2 July 1979, 3/ should include a statement of the costs involved or should provide in a separate statement the relevent financial implications; the Council <u>further decides</u> that the financial implications of each draft decision should be considered by the Budgetary and Finance Committee before adoption by the Council;
- (m) Taking into account the new format of its report, to follow the practice of the Economic and Social Council and no longer formally adopt its report;

- (n) To elect its officers at the beginning of the year at its organizational meeting and to request the officers, in co-operation with the Administrator, to hold consultations, as required, with the member States both before and during the sessions of the Council, for the purpose of organizing and facilitating the completion of the work of the Council;
- (o) To authorize the Administrator to convene when he considers it necessary, in consultation with the Council's elected officers, informal briefing sessions for the members of UNDP in order to ensure that members are kept fully informed on issues to be discussed in the Council;
 - 4. Also decides, with respect to the sessions of the Council:
- (a) That the Budgetary and Finance Committee should have its own agenda in a separate document and its own organization of work;
- (b) To convene, regularly, the Budgetary and Finance Committee one week prior to the annual Council sessions, that week to be devoted to the consideration of those documents which, with priority treatment by the Committee, will contribute most to the efficient scheduling of the Council's time;
- 5. Further decides, with respect to the control and limitation of documentation:
- (a) That the measures recommended by the General Assembly, by the Economic and Social Council and by the Governing Council itself on the control and limitation of documentation should be strictly implemented;
- (b) That an indicative quota for the documentation which it expects as a maximum at the following sessions shall be adopted at each session and that it will exclude documentation on country programmes but will include subquotas for main policy papers and support papers;
- (c) That the feasibility of publishing the documentation of the Council in two categories, namely, "main policy papers" and "support papers", should be studied by the Administrator;
- (d) That the changes proposed by the Administrator concerning the symbols of documentation should be implemented.

II

The Governing Council,

- 1. <u>Decides</u> that the policy review item for its twenty-ninth session should be entitled "New and specific ways and means of mobilizing increased resources on an increasingly predictable, continuous and assured basis";
- 2. Requests the Administrator to prepare relevant documentation, including options and possible courses of action, for the Council's consideration of this subject.

The Governing Council,

<u>Decides</u> that the indicative quota for the documentation to be submitted to it at its twenty-ninth session, excluding documentation on country and intercountry programmes, shall be 1,500 pages, with subquotas of 300 pages for "main policy papers" and 1,200 pages for "support papers".

ΙV

The Governing Council,

Approves the following revisions to its rules of procedures (DP/1/Rev.2):

Rule 1

Insert the following text:

(existing rule 1 shall be paragrah 1 of revised rule 1):

2. The Coverning Council shall hold an organizational meeting early in each calendar year at such times as the Governing Council determines, but in no case later than the last day in February. The organizational meeting shall be responsible for the election of officers of the Governing Council, for the adoption of the agenda of the Governing Council's regular session and for any other matters the Governing Council may determine.

Rule 9

In the first sentence, <u>for</u> "at the beginning of each session" <u>read</u> "at its organizational meeting".

Rule 11

In the frst sentence, <u>for</u> "at the commencement of its regular session" <u>read</u> "at its organizational meeting"; and <u>for</u> "a Rapporteur" <u>read</u> "a Fourth Vice-President".

734th meeting 27 June 1981

81/38. Integrated Systems Improvement Project

The Governing Council,

1. <u>Takes note</u> of the Administrator's progress report on the Integrated Systems Improvement Project (DP/INF/30);

- 2. Approves the Administrator's proposals for the staffing of the Division of Management Information Services for the biennium 1982-1983 as contained in document DP/548, to be financed out of the total appropriation approved for the biennium 1982-1983 in respect of UNDP (excluding the Office for Projects Execution);
- 3. Approves the Administrator's proposals for supplementary staffing of the Division of Management Information Services for the biennium 1980-1981 as contained in document DP/550, subject to the reductions in staff costs totalling \$104,000 (gross) proposed by the Administrator during the twenty-eighth session, to be financed out of the total supplementary appropriation approved for the biennium 1980-1981 in respect of UNDP (excluding the Office for Projects Execution).

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/39. Sectoral support

The Governing Council,

- 1. Takes note of the report of the Administrator on sectoral support (DP/555) and of the views and comments of members thereon;
- 2. Endorses the proposals of the Administrator contained in paragraphs 19, 23, 24 and 25 of his report;
- 3. Approves an allocation of \$12 million, subject to resource availability, to be used as follows:
- (a) \$3.689 million for the biennium 1982-1983 to be used at the discretion of the Administrator primarily for the smaller agencies;
- (b) \$8.311 million to cover the net costs to UNDP for the services of Senior Industrial Development Field Advisers (SIDFAs) during the biennium 1982-1983;
- 4. Requests the Administrator urgently to pursue the consultations initiated in response to Council decision 80/32 of 27 June 1980, 4/ with a view to concluding agreements with Governments of countries drawing upon the services of DISFAS so that some part of the total net cost for those services shall be financed from national IPFs, and/or national sources, with a view to achieving to the extent possible a share of one quarter of this cost, taking into account the particular situation of the least developed countries;
- 5. <u>Invites</u> the Secretary-General to make every effort to increase the United Nations Industrial Development Organization's share of the cost of the SIDFA programme.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/40. Agency support costs

The Governing Council,

Recalling its decision 80/44 of 27 June 1980, 4/

Having considered the report of the Administrator prepared pursuant to that decision (DP/556 and Add.1 and 2),

Reiterating its recommendation, in its decision 80/44, to agencies to review their operational support systems, working methods, arrangements and staffing with a view to bringing about significant reducations in over-all support costs,

- 1. Decides that the support cost reimbursement arrangements being applied at present for capital assistance and technical co-operation activities financed from the resources of the United Nations Capital Development Fund and the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office shall continue pending completion of further consultations between the Administrator and the agencies on a support cost reimbursement formula reflecting the particular support requirements of capital assistance, bearing in mind the desirability for such a formula to reflect previously agreed principles, including, inter alia, simplicity and universality of application, as well as the principle set out in paragraph 2 (d) of decision 80/44, namely, that where actual support costs can be identified no reimbursement in excess of actual costs shall take place;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to submit appropriate proposals related to paragraph 1 above to the Coverning Council at its twenty-ninth session;
- 3. <u>Decides</u> that only autonomous organizations within the United Nations system shall be eligible for support cost flexibility arrangements;
- 4. Approves support cost flexibility arrangements for eligible executing agencies whose levels of annual delivery do not exceed \$15 million, according to the scale set out below; the Administrator shall ensure that at no time would an executing agency receive less in total reimbursement under flexibility arrangements for delivering a higher programme level than it received for delivering a lower programme level;
- (a) Delivery level of \$5 million or less: reimbursement of support costs provided that the total remibursement to the agency, consisting of 13 per cent of delivery plus the amount granted under flexibility arrangements, does not exceed 22 per cent of delivery;
- (b) Delivery level between \$5 and \$10 million: reimbursement of support costs provided that the total reimbursement to the agency, as defined in subparagraph (a) above, does not exceed 19 per cent of delivery;
- (c) Delivery level between \$10 and \$15 million: reimbursement of support costs provided that the total reimbursement to the agency as defined in subparagraph (a) above, shall decrease by 1 per cent of delivery, from 18 per cent to 13 per cent for every increase of \$1 million in delivery from \$10 million to \$15 million;

- 5. <u>Decides</u> that in respect of currency exchange fluctuations dealt with in paragraph 2 (e) of its decision 80/44, the following guidelines and procedures shall apply:
- (a) Executing agencies which are organizations within the United Nations system and not eligible for support cost flexibility arrangements may submit to the Governing Council, through the Administrator, requests for compensation for losses sustained in respect of support cost reimbursements as a result of currency fluctuations; such requests will be considered only in those cases where the average annual currency exchange rate of an agency's headquarters location has appreciated by at least 11 per cent vis-à-vis the United States dollar between one year and the next and provided that the total support cost reimbursement to an agency does not exceed 14 per cent of its UNDP project delivery for the year in question;
- (b) Executing agencies which are organizations within the United Natons system and not eligible for support cost flexibility arrangements shall return to UNDP all gains realized in respect of support cost reimbursements resulting from currency fluctuations when the average annual currency exchange rate of an agency's headquarters location depreciates by more than 11 per cent vis-à-vis the United States dollar between one year and the next, unless the agency concerned can demonstrate to the Governing Council, by data submitted through the Administrator, that its actual support costs for the year in question exceed 13 per cent of its UNDP project delivery and provided that as a result of the gains returned to UNDP the total support cost reimbursement to an agency does not fall below 12 per cent of its UNDP project delivery for the year in question;
- (c) The minimum 11 per cent fluctuations in annual currency exchange rates quoted in subparagraphs (a) and (b) above shall not be cumulative from year to year; each current year shall constitute the base against which the next year's average annual exchange rate is compared (i.e., a rolling base);
- (d) Subparagraphs (a) and (b) above shall take effect from 1 January 1982, 1981 serving as the base year for the calculation of 1982 exchange rate fluctuations, it being understood that, where an executing agency has not availed itself of the provisions of subparagraph (a) above, those of subparagraph (b) will not apply;
- 6. Approves reimbursement of support costs to the Office for Projects Execution in respect of executing projects of a technical co-operation nature based on the same rates as those in effect for other executing agencies, within the limits set forth in paragraph 2 (d) of decision 80/44; the support cost reimbursement for non-UNDP-funded projects shall be at a uniform rate limited to that associated with the actual level of support costs of the Office for Project Execution in respect of executing technical co-operation activities;
- 7. Decides to review the provisions of paragraphs 5 and 6 above at its thirty-first session;

- 8. Decides to review the question of reimbursement to the United Nations Volunteers programme of costs related to non-UNDP-financed activities at its twenty-ninth session following consideration of the report on the activities of the United Nations Volunteers to be presented by the Administrator (see decision 81/1) and further requests the Administrator to present related proposals on the specific question of reimbursement;
- 9. Urges the Administrator and the agencies to continue their efforts to develop a suitable format for ex post facto reporting to the Governing Council on agency support costs, providing such information as mentioned in paragraph 2 (g) of decision 80/44, and to report thereon to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session;
- 10. Takes note of the report of the Administrator on support cost flexibility arrangements for smaller agencies (DP/556/Add.2) and the views and comments thereon;
- 11. Authorizes the Administrator to treat the request of the World Meteorological Organization for flexibility reimbursement in respect of 1981 delivery on the basis of criteria for support cost flexibility reimbursement for 1982 onwards.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/41. Audit reports

The Governing Council,

- 1. Takes note with satisfaction of the audit reports of the participating and executing agencies relating to funds allocated to them by UNDP as at 31 December 1979 (see DP/557) as well as the Administrator's observantions on substantive comments made by the auditors;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to continue in future years the submission of such observations taking into account the views and suggestions made during the discussion:
- 3. Further requests the Administrator to pursue consultations with executing agencies using commercial external auditors on the possibility of including in future audit reports observations on substantive matters and on paragraph 3 of Council decision 79/47 of 10 July 1979 3/ and to report to the Council at its twenty-ninth session on the results achieved.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/42. Interagency Procurement Services Unit

The Governing Council,

- 1. Takes note of the report of the Administrator on the Interagency Procurement Services Unit (DP/559);
- 2. Notes with satisfaction the work performed by the Interagency Procurement Services Unit and expresses its support for a further development of that work, particularly in respect of procurement from developing countries;
- 3. Notes with appreciation that the executing and participating agencies continue to co-operate with the Interagency Procurement Services Unit and urges the agencies to participate also in the financing of the Unit's activities;
- 4. Decides that the Interagency Procurement Services Unit shall continue to be funded under the heading "Support services for UNDP-executed projects", to be financed from overheads received on projects executed by UNDP.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/43. Request of the International Telecommunication Union for additional support costs reimbursement

The Governing Council

- 1. <u>Takes note</u> of the request of the International Telecommunication Union for additional support costs reimbursement for 1980 as contained in documents DP/566 and Corr.l and Add.l and of the Administrator's recommendation that the Council should consider the reimbursement to the International Telecommunication Union of a deficit equivalent to \$87,955 (at the May 1981 exchange rate);
- 2. <u>Further notes</u> that the average exchange rate of the United States dollar vis-à-vis the Swiss franc has considerably improved in 1981, which should result in savings in International Telecommunication Union support costs expenditure for this year;
- 3. <u>Decides</u> to review at its twenty-ninth session the International Telecommunication Union's request for reimbursement of \$87,955 in respect of 1980, in conjunction with its accounts on support costs expenditure for 1981.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/44. Fisheries vessels pool

The Governing Council

- 1. Takes note of the Administrator's report on the fisheries vessels pool (DP/563) and the views and comments of members thereon, and the need for additional vessels;
- 2. Requests the Administrator to submit a report to the Governing Council at its twenty-ninth session on the continued need to develop further the fisheries vessels pool, taking into account potential requests for assistance from developing countries:
- 3. <u>Further requests</u> the Administrator to formulate proposals on the financing of vessel acquisition, utilization and maintenance, taking into consideration the views and comments of members in the debate on this question during the twenty-eighth session;
- 4. <u>Decides</u> that those proposals should be based on the assumption of full international competitive bidding.

735th meeting 30 June 1981

81/45. Date and provisional agenda for the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council

The Governing Council,

Decides on the following arrangements for its meetings in 1982:

(a) Organizational meeting: 2 days during the week 22-26 February 1982, New York

(b) Special meeting: 24-28 May 1982, Geneva

(c) Budgetary and Finance 24-28 May 1982, Geneva

(d) Governing Council, 1-21 June 1982, Geneva twenty-ninth session:

Committee (pre-session meeting): 1-21 June 1982, Geneva

2. Approves the following provisional agenda for its twenty-ninth session:

Provisional agenda for the twenty-ninth session 15/

- 1. Opening of the session
- 2. Election of officers 16/
- Adoption of the agenda and organization of work
- 4. Policy review
- 5. Programme implementation
- 6. Programme planning
- 7. Other funds and programmes
- 8. Financial, budgetary and administrative matters
- 9. Other matters
- 10. Date and provisional agenda for the thirtieth session.

736th meeting 1 July 1981

^{15/} Prepared in accordance with Governing Council decision 81/37. Subitems will be added and annotations prepared in the light of other decisions adopted by the Council at its twenty-eighth session, relevant resolutions adopted by the Economic and Social Council at its second regular session of 1981 and by the General Assembly at its thirty-sixth session and any other matters requiring the consideration of the Governing Council in accordance with rule 8 of its rules of procedure (DP/1/Rev.2).

¹⁶/ In accordance with section I, paragraph 3 (d) and the relevant provisions of section IV of decision 81/37, the election of officers will take place at the Council's organizational session.

81/46. Matters for inclusion in agenda of the Budgetary and Finance Committee and the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council

The Governing Council,

Decides that the Budgetary and Finance Committee will consider during its meeting commencing immediately prior to the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council, within the framework of the provisional agenda for the twnety-ninth session (decision 81/45) those parts of the financial regulations (decision 81/28) and other questions on which consensus was not achieved at the twenty-eighth session of the Council with a view to facilitating resolution of these issues by the Council. 17/

737th meeting 1 July 1981

^{17/} Such questions shall be determined by the Adminstrator on the basis of an examination of the decisions adopted at the twenty-eighth session of the Governing Council and shall be communicated to Governments in good time prior to the twenty-ninth session of the Council.

Appendix

CHECKLIST OF DECISIONS BY AGENDA ITEM

		Page
Programme	implementation (agenda item 4)	
81/12.	Assistance to the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity	40
81/13.	Assistance to the Palestinian people	41
81/14.	Report of the Administrator for 1980	41
81/19.	Implementation of decisions adopted by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session	48
81/20.	Improvement of the methods and procedures for the recruitment of project professional staff and consultants	49
81/21.	Government execution and management; project design, monitoring and evaluation; and UNDP-financed experts	50
81/29.	Evaluation programme	69
	planning and preparation for the third programming 82-1986 (agenda item 5)	· . :
81/15.	Revised country programming procedures	42
81/16.	Preparation for the third programming cycle, 1982-1986	44
81/17.	Assistance for the rehabilitation and reconstruction of Uganda	47
81/18.	Assistance to Lebanon	48
81/22.	Pre-investment activities	51
81/30.	Establishment of a UNDP study programme	69
Country a	nd intercountry programmes and projects (agenda item 6)	
81/23.	Country and intercountry programmes and projects	53

Other i	funds and programmes (agenda item 7)	Page
81/1.	United Nations Volunteers	27
81/2.	United Nations Capital Development Fund	27
81/3.	United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries	28
81/4.	Implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region	29
81/5.	Implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region	30
	region	30
81/6.	Assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa	31
81/7.	United Nations Fund for Population Activities	32
81/8.	United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration	37
81/9.	United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for Development	38
81/10.	Interim arrangements for energy exploration and pre-investment surveys	39
81/11.	United Nations technical co-operation activities	40
81/24.	Report of the Working Group of Government Experts on its review of the United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration	55
81/34.	Information on agency regular and extrabudgetary technical co-operation expenditures	76
Technic	cal co-operation among developing countries (agenda item 8)	
81/31.	Technical co-operation among developing countries and the policies, rules and procedures of UNDP	73
81/32.	Report of the High-level Committee on the Review of Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries on its second session	7 5
81/33.	Enhancing the capabilities of maritime transport training	7.0

Financial	, budgetary and administrative matters (agenda item 9)	Page
81/25.	Annual review of the financial situation, 1980	57
81/26.	Supplementary budget estimates for the biennium 1980-1981	- 58
81/27.	Budget estimates for the biennium 1982-1983	61
81/28.	UNDP financial regulations	64
81/38.	Integrated Systems Improvement Project	81
81/39	Sectoral support	82
81/40.	Agency support costs	83
81/41.	Audit reports	85
81/42.	Interagency Procurement Services Unit	86
81/43.	Request of the International Telecommunication Union for additional support costs reimbursement	86
81/44.	Fisheries vessels pool	87
Other mat	ters (agenda item 10)	
81/35.	United Nations Conference on the Least Developed Countries	77
81/36.	Relations between UNDP and external institutions	78
81/37.	Streamlining and rationalization of the work of the Governing Council	78
Date and Governing	provisional agenda for the twenty-ninth session of the Council (agenda item 11)	
81/45.	Date and provisional agenda for the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council	87
81/46.	Matters for inclusion in agenda of the Budgetary and Finance Committee and the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council	. 89

Annex II

AGENDA AND REPRESENTATION AT THE TWENTY-EIGHTH SESSION

A. Agenda*

- 1. Opening of the session
- 2. Election of officers
- 3. Adoption of the agenda and organization of work
- 4. Programme implementation
 - (a) Annual report of the Administrator
 - (b) Assistance to the national liberation movements recognized by the Organization of African Unity
 - (c) Assistance to the Palestinian people
 - (d) Action taken in response to decisions adopted by the Governing Council at its twenty-seventh session
 - (e) Evaluation programme
 - (f) Action taken in response to Governing Council decision 79/48
- 5. Programme planning and preparation for the third programming cycle, 1982-1986
 - (a) Report of the Administrator
 - (b) Matters arising from Governing Council decision 80/30
 - (c) Assistance to specific countries
 - (d) Pre-investment activities
- 6. Country and intercountry programmes and projects
 - (a) Trends and problems in the country programmes
 - (b) Country programmes
 - (c) Intercountry programmes
 - (d) Global and interregional programmes and projects

^{*} As adopted by the Council at its 708th meeting, on 9 June 1981.

- 7. Other funds and programmes
 - (a) United Nations Fund for Population Activities
 - (b) United Nations Volunteers
 - (c) United Nations Capital Development Fund
 - (d) United Nations Revolving Fund for Natural Resources Exploration
 - (e) United Nations Interim Fund for Science and Technology for Development
 - (f) Interim arrangements for energy exploration and pre-investment surveys
 - (g) United Nations Special Fund for Land-locked Developing Countries
 - (h) Assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa and follow-up to the United Nations Conference on Desertification
 - (i) Implementation of the medium-term and long-term recovery and rehabilitation programme in the Sudano-Sahelian region
 - (ii) Implementation of the Plan of Action to Combat Desertification in the Sudano-Sahelian region
 - (iii) Assistance to drought-stricken countries in Africa
 - (i) United Nations technical co-operation activities
 - (j) Information on agency regular and extrabudgetary technical co-operation expenditures financed from sources other than UNDP
- 8. Technical co-operation among developing countries
 - (a) Technical co-operation among developing countries and the policies, rules and procedures of UNDP
 - (b) Report of the High-level Committee on its second session
- 9. Financial, budgetary and administrative matters
 - (a) Annual review of the financial situation, 1980
 - (b) Budget estimates for 1982-1983 and supplementary estimates for 1981
 - (c) UNDP financial regulations
 - (d) Integrated Systems Improvement Project
 - (e) Sectoral support
 - (f) Support costs and flexibility arrangements
 - (g) Audit reports

- (h) Interagency Procurement Services Unit
- (i) Other matters

10. Other matters

- (a) Matters arising out of action taken by other organs of the United Nations system
- (b) Information on the relations between UNDP and external institutions
- (c) Further consideration of the organization of the sessions of the Governing Council
- 11. Date and provisional agenda for the twenty-ninth session of the Governing Council
- 12. Report of the Governing Council to the Economic and Social Council at its second regular session of 1981

B. Representation at the twenty-eighth session

- 1. The following members of the Governing Council were represented at the session: Argentina, Austria, Bangladesh, Belgium, Brazil, Bulgaria, Canada, China, Colombia, Cuba, Denmark, Egypt, Fiji, France, Gabon, Gambia, Germany, Federal Republic of, Greece, Guinea, India, Italy, Japan, Kuwait, Liberia, Malawi, Malaysia, Mexico, Netherlands, New Zealand, Niger, Norway, Pakistan, Poland, Romania, Rwanda, Sierra Leone, Somalia, Sri Lanka, Sweden, Switzerland, Trinidad and Tobago, Turkey, Uganda, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of America, Venezuela, Yemen.
- 2. The following States were represented by observers: Afghanistan, Australia, Bahrain, Barbados, Benin, Bhutan, Bolivia, Burma, Burundi, Cape Verde, Central African Republic, Chad, Chile, Congo, Czechoslovakia, Democratic Kampuchea, Democratic People's Republic of Korea, Democratic Yemen, Djibouti, Ecuador, El Salvador, Ethiopia, Finland, German Democratic Republic, Guyana, Honduras, Hungary, Indonesia, Ireland, Israel, Jamaica, Jordan, Kenya, Lao People's Democratic Republic, Lebanon, Lesotho, Madagascar, Mali, Mauritania, Mongolia, Nicaragua, Nigeria, Oman, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Portugal, Qatar, Republic of Korea, Sao Tome and Principe, Senegal, Seychelles, Singapore, Sudan, Suriname, Swaziland, Syrian Arab Republic, Thailand, Tunisia, United Arab Emirates, United Republic of Tanzania, Viet Nam, Yugoslavia, Zimbabwe.
- 3. An observer for the Palestine Liberation Organization attended the meetings.
- 4. Observers for the following national liberation movements also attended: African National Congress (South Africa), Pan Africanist Congress of Azania (South Africa), South West Africa People's Organization.

- 5. The following United Nations offices and programmes were represented: United Nations (Office of the Director-General for Development and International Economic Co-operation, Department of International Economic and Social Affairs, Department of Technical Co-operation for Development, United Nations Centre on Transnational Corporations, Office of the United Nations Commissioner for Namibia, United Nations Fund for Drug Abuse Control (Regional Commissions Liaison Unit), Economic and Social Commission for Asia and Pacific, Economic Commission for Latin America, Office of the United Nations Disaster Relief Co-ordinator, World Food Council, United Nations Conference on Trade and Development, United Nations Industrial Development Organization, United Nations Centre for Human Settlements, United Nations Children's Fund, World Food Programme, Office of the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees, United Nations Institute for Training and Research, United Nations Fund for Population Activities.
- 6. The following specialized agencies and other organizations of the United Nations system were represented: International Labour Organisation, Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization, World Health Organization, World Bank, Universal Postal Union, International Telecommunication Union, World Meteorological Organization, Inter-Governmental Maritime Consultative Organization, World Intellectual Property Organization, International Fund for Agricultural Development, International Atomic Energy Agency, General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, International Trade Centre (UNCTAD/GATT).
- 7. Observers for the following intergovernmental organizations participated:
 Agency for Cultural and Technical Co-operation, African Development Bank,
 Asian-African Legal Consultative Committee, Asian Development Bank, Inter-American
 Development Bank, International Bureau for Informatics, International Planned
 Parenthood Federation, Organization of American States, Organization of the Islamic
 Conference, World Tourism Organization.
- 8. Observers for the following non-governmental organizations participated: International Chamber of Commerce, League of Red Cross Societies.

		· · ·
	•	

كيفية الحصول على منشورات الامم المتحدة

يكن الحمول على منشورات الام المتحدة من المكتبات ودور التوزيع في جميع انحاء العالم · امتعلم عنها من العكتبة التي تتعامل معها أو اكتب الى : الام المتحدة ،قسم البيع في نيويورك او في جنيف ·

如何勒取联合国出版物

联合国出版物在全世界各地的书店和经售处均有发售。请向书店询问或写信到纽约或日内瓦的联合国销售组。

HOW TO OBTAIN UNITED NATIONS PUBLICATIONS

United Nations publications may be obtained from bookstores and distributors throughout the world. Consult your bookstore or write to: United Nations, Sales Section, New York or Geneva.

COMMENT SE PROCURER LES PUBLICATIONS DES NATIONS UNIES

Les publications des Nations Unies sont en vente dans les librairies et les agences dépositaires du monde entier. Informez-vous auprès de votre libraire ou adressez-vous à : Nations Unies, Section des ventes, New York ou Genève.

КАК ПОЛУЧИТЬ ИЗДАНИЯ ОРГАНИЗАЦИИ ОБЪЕДИНЕННЫХ НАЦИИ

Издания Организации Объединенных Наций можно купить в книжных магазинах и агентствах во всех районах мира. Наводите справки об изданиях в вашем книжном магазине или пишите по адресу: Организация Объединенных Наций, Секция по продаже изданий, Нью-Йорк или Женева.

COMO CONSEGUIR PUBLICACIONES DE LAS NACIONES UNIDAS

Las publicaciones de las Naciones Unidas están en venta en librerías y casas distribuidoras en todas partes del mundo. Consulte a su librero o diríjase a: Naciones Unidas, Sección de Ventas, Nueva York o Ginebra.

Price: \$U.S. 9.00

.....

25097-October 1981-4,400

Litho in United Nations, New York